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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Corporate Information

Banking Licemce No. 12/NH-GP 9 May 2003
The Banking Licence was issued by the State Bank of Vietnam and is valid for 99 yvears from the licence

date.

Business Hegistrafion
Certificate No. 4103060 | 663 19 Jume 2003

The Business Registration Certificate has been amended several times, the most recent of which is by
Business Registration Certificate No, 4103001665 dared 10 March 2016, The initinl Business
Registration Certificate and its updates from the first amendment to the 21" amendment were issued by
the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City. The updated Business Registration

Certificates from the 22*! amendment were issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of

Hanwoi.
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank™) presents this
statement and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary
{collectively referred to as “the Group™) for the year ended 31 December 2013,

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements i sccordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, In the opinion of the Bank’s Board of
Directors:

{a) the consolidated financial statemenis set out on pages 6 1o 99 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as st 31 December 2015, and of the consolidated
results of operations and the consolidsted cash flows of the Group for the vear then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for
Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable 1o financial reporting; and

(b}  atthe date of this statement., there are no reasons for the Bank's Board of Directors 1o believe that
the Group will not be able to pay its liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for issue.

Hanoi. 25 April 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Shareholders
Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Viemam Asia Commercial
Joint Stock Bank (*the Bank™) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group™), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 201 5, the consolidated statements of income
and cash Mlows for the vear then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were anthorised for
issue by the Bank’s Board of Directors on 235 April 2016, as set out on pages 6 to 9.

Management's Responsibility

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reponting, and for such internal control as the
Board of Directors determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolidated financial
staterments that are free from material misstatement. whether due o fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with Viemamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance
dhout whether the consolidated financeal statements are Tree of material msstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedures (o obtain audil evidence about the amounis and discloswres in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material mizstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss
of the Bank's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Bank's Board of Directors,
s well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our awdit opinion.
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Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give o true and fair view, in all materinl respects,
of the consalidated financial position of Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank and its subsidiary
as ol 31 December 2015, and of ther conzolidated resubts of operations and their consolidated cash flows
for the vear then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Victnam and the relevant
slatutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifving opinion, we draw attention 1o Naole 16{v) 1o the consolidated Ninancial statements.
Accordingly, as at 31 December 2015, the Group had interest receivables from three customers
amounting 1o YND4OB,693 million with the roadmap for resolving until 31 December 2017 approved
b the State Bank of Vietnam. As a result, the Group did not apply the accounting policy as described
im Wate 4(x) Tor these interest receivables,

K_PM'[.: Limited s Branch in Ho Chi Minh City

o
o~
h _‘_ll': -
1 rucag Ath Phuc “Meuven Anh Hung
Practicing Audinor Registration Practicing Auoditor Registration
Certificate No. 1901-2013-007-1 Certificate No. 2206-201 3-007- |

Deputy General Divecior

Ho Chi Minh City, 25 April 2016
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Vietnam Aska Commercial Joint 5tock Bank

34 - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanod, Vietnam
Consolidated balamee shect as at 3 December 2005
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ASSETS

Cash on hand, gold and gemstones

Balanees with the State Bank of

Vietnam

Deposiis with and loans to other

eredif institutions

Deposits with other credit institulions
Loans {o other credit institutions

Held-for-trading securities
Held-for-trading securities
Allowance for held-for-trading securities

Laoans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers
Allowance for loans and advances to

customers

Debts purchasing activities

Purchased debis

Imvestment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Allowance for mvestment securities

Capital contribution, long-term

investments

Cher long-term investments

Fized asseis
Tangible fixed asseiz
{_rsi

Accummilared depreciation
Intangible fixed assets

Clost

Avcummdated amiartisation

(her asscts
Receivables

Accrued mierest and lfees receivable

Chher assets

TOTAL ASSETS

MNote

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Form BOXTCTI-HN

{lesmed wnder Circifar Na,
SO LTT-NHNN daied 3] December 2014

af the State Bank af Vietnan)

S1AL01S Jinzzond

VND VND

334,550,243,535 357,314,966 358
506,560,690,117 699, 242,031,2M)
4579602212211 2,069,023,413,281
4295032212211 2,069.023 413,281
284.570,000,000 -
104,235,636,547 18.056,619.147

107,527,745,273
(3,292,108,726)

20,039,701,178,538
20.267.71 1,996,409

{228,010,817,871)

IR0 877497
38991 877,497

11,056 464,135 287
B.652.036,555.130
2,699 940 0K0 TS50

(295,522 409.602)

315,653,224, 400
315,653.224.400

278,541,673,262
134,527.052.304
283,592, 467,522
(149,065,415, 128)
144,014.620,868
223.542.356,340
(79.527,735,472)

4,623 877,782,701
1,213,189.487,747
3.005.872.361.0535

404,815,933, 89%

22,450,370.885
(4,393,751,738)

15,633,183,931,713
15.821.970,562,729

(188,786,631.016)

=

11,513,643,801,769
10,128.331,126,385
1,448,794,705,580

(63,482,030,196)

518,927 202,800
518,927,302,800

118.609.564.976
118.656.492,574

248, 609,540,916
129,953 048 342)
109,953,072 402
182,521 406,597
{72,368, 334,193}

4,582,510,790,1%
1,633,014, 484,506

2,228,764.064,842
M), 732,240,548

41,878,178,654,005

35,500,512,421,560

The pccampanying moles are an infegral part of these consolidated financial sfatenments




Vietnam Asin Commercial foinl Stock Bank

A - 348 Han Thuyven, Pham Diah Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoei, Yistnam
Consolidated balance sheei as at 31 December 2005
{continued )

Note
B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIARILITIES
1 Borrowings from the State Bank of
Vivinam 17
] Deposits and borrowings from other
credit institutions 18
1 Deposits from other credit institutions
.l Borrowings from other credit mstitutions
I Deposits lrom cusiomers 19
V Entrusted funds received il |
Vi Valwable papers issued 21
¥l Oher liabilities
| Accrued interest and fees payvable
3 Other liabilities 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
YIIl  Equity 13
1 Capital
i Share capitel
o Share premium
E {hher capital
2 Reserves
5 Retained profits

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Form BOLTCTD=HMN

(Fezued under Cirenlor No
AW TLTT-NHNN dinted 31 December 2004

of the State Bonk of Victrm)

S1/122015 122004

VNI VND

- 109,436,812,29
12865360797 326  11,636,501,251,528
50010920378, 989 3071388, 185,030
Tyaad,440.418,337 B.565,113,066.498
14430700870 488  19,779,746,323,690
26,134, 500,000 12,431,250,000
H,ﬂ-??.ﬂ:-ﬁhmﬂ L
G18.548.427,.523 416,429 564 687
308 888, | 50,092 366,874,784, 197
109.960,276,531 49,564, TR0, 49
37.958,620,621, 837  31,954,555,202,195
3,919, 558,032,258  3,035.957,119. 365
3.500,102.398 945 3,206,232, 118,945
3,499 GO0 ATOMN 3008 D00, 0800, (i
SR A0, D 108 218 800,000
13,325 045 1 1.328,945

148,445 464,182
271.010,16%,131

3.919,558,032,158

41 8THITR.654. 095

198,721,138,462
231.003.951.958

3.635,957.219.365

A5.590,512,421,560

The aecompanying notes are an imtegral part of these consolidoted financial storements
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Form BOZTCTD-HN

feswed under Cironlar No,

W2 ILTT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
af the Skme Bawk of Fleinani)

Vietnam Asdi Commerecial Jokisl Slock Bank

A - MB Han Thaven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung Distriet. Hanoi, Vietnam
Consolidated halamce sheet as at 31 December 2005
[eontinued)

A1/122015 I 22004
Noe VND VND
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2 Foreign exchange commitments A70,635,000,000 846,718,980,000
fir which:
® Conmrifmeess on purchose of
Sowreign currencics J70635, NIE G080 FU3 TR GED O
" onmittrents on sale of foreign
CHFPERCies - F32 020 (W0 g
Letters of eredil 39 23,095,745,509 20,830,059,068
Other guarantees 39 55,545,694,032 72,393 088,084
25 April 201
Prepared by:
Yo . .
ea " MGAN HEN

ifl:mrl:x'. Nai e
'._:!3' 1.IE"' A

La Quang Trung

Chief Accountent widing Depay General Divector

The accomparryving nodes are ar integral part of these consedidated fimancial siatements



Vietnam Asin Commereial Jolnt Stock Bank

M4 - 34B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung Mstrict, Hanod, Yietnam
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended
3 December 2005

Mot

i Interest and similar income 2
2 Interest and similar expenses 24
] Net interest income 24
3 Fee and commission income 23
4 Fee and commission expenses 25
I Mt Fee and oo mssion

[expenses)income 25
11 Met loss from trading of foreign

CUrTEneies h
v Mot gain from trading of

held-for-trading securities 17
v Net guin/(loss) from sales of

imvestment securities 18
5 Oiher income 24
fi Other expenses 29
Vi MNet ather income 29
Vil Income from investments in other

entities 1]
VIl Operating expenses M
X Operating profit before allowance

expenses for credit losses
X Allowance expenses for credit losses 32

X1 Profit before tax
{earried forward to the next page)

Form BOYTCTD-HMN

flssued weder Circudar No,
JN S TT=-NHNN dared 31 Drecember 20104
of the Seate Bark of Fietna)

2015
VND

2.871,174.154,522

il
VNI
Heclassified

1.841,994.974.536

(1,768,795,035,366) (1,443,.214,049,525)

1102,379.119,156

[ 1.812,985,086
(15,834,738.833)

398,780,925,011

13,267.162,077
(10,764,374.234)

(4,021,753,74T) 1,502,787.843
(264,140,599, 70%) (89,892,067 ,096)
5901,023.594 68, 556,991,706
29.908,336,738 {36,049 300,522)
147.646,623,230 127.340,154,229
{146,948,304,227) (B.314,177)
695,319,003 117.331,340,052
4,598,055.219 8834211678
(438.876,506,250)  (347.653.263.083)
436,44 5,99M4,005 132,411,537,586
(321,116,648,613) (T2,073.395,769)
115329345392 60.338,141.817

The accomparying pofes are an imegral part of these consolidated financial siatemeniy




Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

MA -

348 Han Thuven, Pham Dionh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Yictnam
Consolidated stutement of income for the year ended
31 December 2015 (continued)

X1

Xu

XV

Mote

Profit hefore tax
{broughit forward from the previous page)

Corporale income ax expense - curment i3
Corporate income tax expense - deferred 33

Total income (ax expense A3

Profii after tax

Basic earnings per share (VNIDVshare) 14

25 Apri! Eﬂ'lﬁ

La Quang Trung
Chiaf Accoumtant

Form BOYTCTD-HN

funed wnder Clrenlar No,

S I LTT-NHNN dated 3T Decembear 2004
of the State Bank of Vietran)

2013
YND

115,329,345,392
(33,362,702,713)

014
YND
60,338, 141,817

(12,841,098,491)

(33,362,702,713)  (12,541,095,491)
81,966,642,679  47.497,043.326
250 145

LA u}'en Van Hao

T3 ing Deputy CGemeral Director

The accompanying notes are an imfegral pavt of these consalidated fimancial statemenis
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Vietnam Acin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
MA = 4B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam

Consolidated statement of cash Mows for the vear ended

3 December 2015 (Direct method)

ol
02
03

i3
07

)

12

|3
4

17
|8
|9
20
21

Form B4 TCTD-HN

{lsaed wnder Circular No.
AL TT-NHNN dared 31 December 2014
af the State Bank of ¥ietnam)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest and similar income received
Interest and similar expenses paid

Met fee and commission (expenses paid)/
income received

Met (payments for)/receipts from trading

activities {foreign currencies, old and securities)

(Cher expenses paidyother income received
Salaries and operating expenses paid
Corporate income tax paid

Cash Mows from operating activities before

changes in operating assels and labilities

Changes in operating asseis

(Increasej'decrease in deposits with and
[oans 1o other eredit mstitutions

Drecrease/ increase ) in held-for-trading
soouritics and investment securities

[ncrease in loans and advances to customers
Ltilisations of allowance for credit losses
Decrease/{increase) m other operating assets

Changes in operating limbhilities

{ Decrease Vincrease in borrowings from
the State Bank of Vietnam

Incrense in deposits and borrowings
from cther credit institutions

Increase in deposits from customers
[ncrenase in valuable papers issued

Increasefdecrease) in entrusied funds received
Incrense/(decrease) in other operating habilities

L'nilisations of reserves

NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2015 2014
VND VND
2.095,662,603,630  1,092,345,792,265
(1,617,809,547,709)  (1,303,767,336,048)
(14.586,703,902) 5029 867 651
(13.141,219,126) 31,123,101.875
(76.403,197,753)  113,380,585,008
(408.942,912,332)  (323,528,748,490)
(9, 744,806,801 (8,786,112,699)
(44,965, 783,993 (303,302,850, 438)
(284,570, 00:0,000) 239 000,004,000
140,061,912,688  (5.556,272,036,410)
(4,484.733,311,177)  (1,433,528,562,704)
(88,683.850,352) (15,690,226,049)
653,822,174.942  (206.572.299.248)
(109.436,812.200)  109,436,812,290
1.228.850.545,798  7.355.850.666,457
4,660,053,546,798  957.671,833.979
8,477,026,500 :
13,703.250,000 (52,058,919,504)
4,066,544 648 (26.644.129)
{8,393,356,062) (3.000,000)
1688260887500 1,004,504,774,154

The accompammving mofes are an integral part of these comvolidated financiad staremernts



Vielnam Asia Commercizl Joini Sieck Bank

344 - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh He Ward
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietaam
Consolilated statement of cash Mows for the year ended

31 December 2005 (rect methed - continwed)

01
02
07
08
b

n

01

v

i

2015
VND

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(72,860,04],404)

133,518,761,201

(55,275.000,000)
B1.089 183,138

Pavments for purchaszes of fixed assels
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Payments for investments in other entities
Collections on myvestments in other entities
Receipis of dividends and profit distnbutions

Form BO4TCTD-HN

{Trsmed wnder Clecufar N,

SO TT-NHNN derted 37 December 2074
oof the Stente ek of Vietram)

014
YND

{25.969.,405.469)
232,583,637

95.502,343,000

from capital contribution, long-term invesiments 4,598,055,219 R.834,213.675
NET CASH FLOWS FROM ]
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 91.070.9538,154 '?3.59'9‘.'?34343_
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from share capital issued 230,300, 200,000 -
Dhividends paid (64,310,750 (2,436,750
NET CASH FLOWS FROM o
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR PR (3/416,356)
NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR 2.010.562,734. 904 1083, 102,072,247
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3. 125580,410,959 2042 478,334,712
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

5,136,143,145.863 JA25.580,410,959

THE END OOF THE YEAR (NOTE 35)

e accompanying mofes are an integral part of these convolidated financial starements




Vietnam Asla Commercial Joint Stock Bank

34A - 348 Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hui Ha Trang District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Consolidated statement of cash Mows Tor the vesr ended
31 December 2005 (Direct method - continued)

NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposals of capital contribution.
long-term investments not vet collected

25 Apnl!ﬂ!ﬁ

Chief Acooumtanmt

Form BO4TOTD-HM

{lesued wnder Circulur No
SR20FLTT-NHNN dared 31 December 2004
af the State Bonk of Fietrnam)

2015 2014
YND YND

246, 200,000,000 635,331,657,.000

~Eremiding ﬂ:ﬂﬂj'ﬂt‘ﬁﬂufﬂlr‘l.’bw

The aecompanying notes ore an iitegeal pard of these consolidared financial siatemenrs

13
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()

(b)

Vietnam Asis Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOISTCTI-HN
A - 348 Han Thaven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {Tasued wader Cireular No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanod, Victnam AW STT-NENN dated 3 December 20014
Motes to the consolidaied financial siatements for the of the Seate Bank of Vietman)

year ended 3 December 2015

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

Establishment and operations

Yiemam Asia Commercial Joim Stock Bank (“the Bank™) is a commercial joim stock bank
incarporated in Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

The Bank was established on the basis of merging between Sai Gon Financial Joint Stock Company
and Da Nang Rural Commercial Joint Stock Bank under Decision Mo, 44000D-NHNN dated 9 May
2003 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV™). The Bank operates under Banking Licence No.
T2ZWH-GP dated 9 May 2003 issued by the SBY and Business Registration Certificate No. 4103001665
dated 19 June 2003 ssued by the Department of Planning and [nvestment of Ho Chi Minh City and its
updates from the 22" amendment issued by the Depariment of Planning and Investment of Hanet. The
Banking Licence of the Bank is valid for 99 years from the licence date.

The principal activities of the Bank are as follows:

= Mobilise short, medium and longterm funds in the form of demand deposits, time deposils,
promissory notes, bonds and valuable papers following the SBY s approval;

= Receive entrusied funds:

- Receive funds from domestic and overseas credil institutions:

- Lend short, medium and long-term loans to economic entities and individuals;

- Discount commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers;
Contribute capital and invest in joint-ventures in accordance with laws;

= Provide settlement services 10 customers;

- Trade foreign currencies and pokd:

= Provide international seltlement services; und

- Provide other banking services allowed by the SBV.

The conselidated financial statements for the vear ended 3| December 2013 comprise the financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiary {collectively referred to as “the Group™).

Charter capital

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank's charier capital iz WND3 4000000470000 (31/12/220014:
VND3,098,000,000,000), The Bank issued 349,999.047 ordinary shares (31/12/2014; 300,800,000
ordinary shares), with par value of VND10.000 per share.

14



ie)

(d)

(e)

Yietmam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HMN
HMHA = 3B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward rissued wmder Circwlar Na.
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanod, Vietnam SR LTT-NHNN daved 3] December 2014
Notes to the consolidated Gnancial statements for the of the State Bank of Vietnam)

year ended 31 December 2005 (conthnued )

Location and operation network

The Bank's Head Office is located at 34A - 34B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward, Hai Ba Trung
District, Hanoi, Vietnam, As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has onc (1) head office, seventeen (17)
branches, sixty four {64) transaction offices and five {5} saving funds nation-wide (31/12/2014; the
Bank has one (1) head office, one () transaction center, sixteen {16) branches, sixiy three (63)
transaction offices and four (4) saving funds naticn-wide).

Subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank had one subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of equity
Operation Mature of owned and voting rights
Entity name Licence business 12015 31122014
Vietnam Asia Commercial Bank 2THQD-NHNN - Assels
Asget Management Comipany dated 181172010  management 100 [ %%

The Bank's subsidiary was established in Yietnam,

Number of employees
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has 1,653 emplovees (3171 272014; 1,563 emplovees),

12
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Jaint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HM
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vear ended 31 December 2005 (continned)

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnemese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of
Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. These accounting
policies may differ in some material respects from Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards and the
generally accepled accounting principles and standards in other countries.  Accordingly, the
secompanying consolidated Ainancial statements are not intended to present the consolidated financial
position and consolidated results of operations and conselidated cash Mows of the Group in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in couniries or jurisdictions other than
Vietnam, Furthermore, their utilisation 15 not designed for those who are not informed about
Vietnamese accounting principles, procedures and practices for credit institutions.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements. except for the consolidated statement of cazh flows, are prepared
on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash flows is
prepared using the direct method.

Annual accounting period
The annual accounting period of the Groop is from | Janvary to 31 December,

Accounting and presentation currency

The Group’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“WHMD™), which is alzo the currency used for
consolidated financial statement presentation purpose.

Form of accounting records applied

The Group uses accounting software to record its transactions.

[£i]
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Hai Ba Trung Disirict, Hanod, Vietnam 2200 L TT-NHNN dared 31 December 204
Motes o the eonsoliduted Nnancial stafements for the af the State Bank of Vietnam)

year ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Changes in accounting policies

Dehbt classification in accordance with Point 3, Article 8; Point 1, Article % and Point 3a,
Article 10 of Circular No. 0272013/ TT-NHNN (“Circalar 02™)

From 1 Januwary 20135, Point 3, Article 8 and Poim 1, Article 9 of Circular 02 dated 21 January 2013 of
the SBY regulating the classification of assets, credit loss allowance level, allowance method and
utilisation of allowance in operations of credit institutions and foreign bank branches have been
effective. Accordingly, credit institutions, foreign bank branches are required to use the results of debt
classification as provided by the Credit Information Center of the SBY (“CIC”) ot the date of
classification to adjust results of the intemnal classification of loans and off-balance sheet commitments.

In addition, Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02 has expired since | April 2015, Accordingly, credit
institutions, foreign bank branches are not permitted to reschedule the payment terms without changing
debt group as stipulated i Point 3a, Aricle 10,

The Group has adopted these requirements on a prospective hasis. The changes in debt classification
policy are described in Mate 4(F).

Adoption of Circular No. 492014/ TT-NHNN

On 3] December 2014, the SBY issued Circular Mo, 492004/ TT-NHNN {“Circular 497) amending
and supplementing cenain articles of the Financial Reporting Regime applicable to credit mstitutions
sued under Decision No. |&Z007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of the Governor of the SBY
(“Decision 16™) and the regulation on Chart of Accounts for credit institutions issued under Decision
Wo, 479 2004/QD-NHNN dated 29 April 2004 of the Governor of the SBY (“Decision 4797). Circular
49 is effective from 15 February 2013,

Accordingly, the Group’s consolidated financial statements presentation for the year ended 31
December 2015 reflected certain changes following the new templates provided by Circular 49. In
addition, certain corresponding figures for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been reclassified w
conform to current year's presentation (Note 45 — Corresponding figures).

Adoption of Circular No. 202204/ TT-BTC

On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No, 202720014/ TT-BTC providing
guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements (“Circular 2027}
Circular 202 replaces previous guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statemenis provided in Part X111 of Circular No. 1612007/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2007 of the
Ministry of Finance. Circular 202 is effective after 45 days from the signing date and applicable for
annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, The Group has adopted Circular 202
on a prospective hasis. The adoption of Circular 202 did not have any material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 201 3.

7
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Vietnom Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
J4A - 3B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {Isswed wnder Circidar No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam AW IO A TT-NHNN dated 31 Decembear 2014
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the of the Stare Bank of Vietnar)

year ended 31 December 2015 (continned)

Adoption of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 2002014/ TT-BTC providing
guidance on Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises (“Circular 200™). Circular 200 replaces
previous guidance on Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises under Decision No, 15/2006/QD-
BTC dated 20 March 2006 (“Decision 15™) and Circular No. 2442009/ TT-BTC dated 31 December
20009, Circular 200 is effective afier 45 davs from the signing date and applicable for annual sccounting
perinds beginning on or after 1 January 20015, In addition to compliance with the Vietnamese
Accounting Svstem for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam, the Bank also
adopled relevant requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group in the preparation of
these consolidated firancial statcments.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power o
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity in order to obfain economic benefits from its
activities. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Where the accounting policies of subsidiaries are differemt from those adopted by the Bank,
adjustments have been made where necessary to ensure consistency of accounting policies for
consolidated financial stalements,

Transacrions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

The Group's transactions are accounted for in original currencies. Monetary asscts and liabilitics
denominated in currencics other than Y& D are translated into YMND at rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting dates, non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VIND are
translated into VND a1 rates of exchange ruling on transaction dates.

Transactions relating to income/expenses in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at rates
of exchange ruling on transaction dates.

18
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joini Stock Bank Form BOSTOCTD-HN
34A - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward (fasued under Clrenlar No.
Hai Ba Trung District, Hamol, Vietnam JRI0IHTT-NHNN dared 31 December 2004
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for (he of the Stare Bank of Vieinam)

year ended 31 December 2015 (comtinued )

Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, gold, precious metals and gemstones, deposits with the 5BY,
deposits with and loans 1o other credit institutions with original term 10 maturity of not more than three
months, Treasury bills, other short-term valuable papers qualified for discounting with the SBV and
securities which have maturity date within three months from purchase date,

Gold is revalued at the reporting date and differences from the revaluation are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income,

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Deposits with ather credit institutions excluding demand deposits are deposits with other credit
institutions with original term to maturity of not more than three months.

Loans to other credit institutions are loans with original term to maturity of not more than 12 months.

Deposis with other credit institutions excluding demand deposits and loans to other credit mstitutions
are stated at the amount of outstanding principal less allowance for credit losses.

Debt classification of deposits with and loans to ather credit institutions and allowance thereof is made
in accordance with Circular 02 and Circolar No, 092004/ TT-NHNN dated 18 March 2014 issued by
the SBY (“Circular 09") amending and supplementing certain articles of Circular 02, Accerdingly, the
Group classified debis and made specific allowance for credit losses on deposits with and loans to other
eredit institutions in accordance with the accounting policy as described in Note 4(1).

In accordance with Circalar 02, the Group is not required to make general allowance for credit fosses
on deposits with and loans to other credit institutions.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to cusioaners are stated at the amount of outstanding principal less allowance for
credit losses. Allowanee for credit losses on loans and advances to costomers comprises specific
allowance and general allowance.,

Shori-term loans are those with repayment term within one vear from the loan disbursement date;
medium-erm loans are those with repayment term over one year to five vears from the loan
disbursement date and long-term loans are those with repayment term of more than five years from the
loan disbursement date.

The Group derecognises loans and advances to customers when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the loans expire, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the loans are transferred.

For the loans sold to Vietnam Asset Management Company (*VAMOC"}), the Group derecagnized from
the balance sheet in accordance with the guidance in Official Letter No. 8499NHNN-TCET dated 14
November 2013 (SOL 845997) issued by the SBY and Official Letter No. 925/NHNN-TCKT dated 19
February 2014 (0L 9257) issued by the SBY.

|9
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34A - ME Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {lssered wider Circular No.
Hai ta Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam SO0 TT-NHNN dated 3T Decamber 20704
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the af the Ssate Bank of Vietwan

year ended 31 December 2005 {continuwed)

Diebi classification and allovwance for credit fosses for loans and advances 1o customers are made in
accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09 as described in Mobe 4().

Debt classification, allowance level and caleulation method of allowances for credit losses

Debi classification

Dreposits with and loans to other credit institutions (except for demand deposits), unlisted corporate
bonds, loans and advances to customers (logether referred to as “debis™), the debis sold but not yet
collected and purchased debis are classified in accordance with the guantitative method as stipulated in
Article 10 of Circular 02. Accordingly, debts are classified into five debt groups based on overdue
status as follows:

Group Overdue status
| | Current | (@) Current debts being assessed as fully and timely recoverable, both principal and
debts inlerest; or

ib) Debts being overdue for less than 10 days and being assessed as fully
recoverable, both overdue principal and interest, and fully and timely
recovernble, both remaining principal and interest,

F 4 Special (a) Debis being overdue between 10 days and 90 days; or

d’“':'tifﬂ"'-‘d (b} Dehts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time,
ehils

3 Suh- {a) Debts being overdue between @1 days and 180 days; or
standard | (b) Debis having extended terms of repayment for the first ime; or
debits (¢} Debts having exempt or reduced inferest because customers are not able to pay
the interest according to the credit contract; or
id) Debis falling in one of the following cases not vet collected within 30 days after
the issvance date of the recovery decision:
*  Debts having violated regulations specified in Points 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 of Article
[26 of Laws on Credit Institwtions; or
*  Debts having viclauted regulations specified in Poimis |, 2, 3, 4 of Anticle
27 of Laws an Credit Institutions; or
*  Debts having violated regulations specified in Points 1, 2, 5 of Anicle 128

of Laws on Credit Institutions.

(e) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions.

4 Dowbtful | (a) Debts being overdue between 181 days and 360 days; or

debts (b) Debis having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and being
overdue leas than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms of repayment;
oF

(e Debis having rescheduled erms of repavment for the second time; or

(d) Debis specified in point (d) of Sub-standerd debts not yet collected between 30
davs and &0 days after the 1ssuance date of recovery decision; or
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34A - 3B Han Thoven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward fixened wader Clircwlar Mo
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yeur cnled 31 December 2005 (continued )

Giroup | Overdue siafus

| (e} Debis in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being overdue
up to 6 days according to recovery term.

5 | Loss | (0} Debts being overdue more than 360 davs; or

debts (b) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and being
overdue more than 90 dayvs according to the first rescheduled terms of
TEPRYMENL; Or

(e} Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time and being
overdue according (o the second reschedule terms of repavment; or

(d) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the third time or more, |
regardless of whether the debis are overdue or nol; or

(2]} Debts specified in point (d) of Sub-standard debiz not vel collected after 60 days
from the issuance date of recovery decision; or

{f) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being overdue
of more than 60 days according 1o recovery term; or

(£} Debis to credit institutions being announced under special control status by the
5BV, or to foreign bank branches of which capital and assets are blockaded.

For off-balance sheet payments on behall, the Group classifies debis based on the overdue davs from
the date the Group has obligations under the commitments:

= Group 3 - Sub-standard debis: overdue of less than 30 days:
= Ciroup 4 — Doubiful debts: overdue from 30 davs 1o less than 90 diys,
* Group 5 - Loss debts: overdue of more than 90 davs.

Where a customer owes more than one debt 1o the Group, and has any of its debts transferred 10 a higher
risk group, the Group is obliged 1o classify the remaining debis of such customer into the debt group
with higher risk corresponding with their level of risk.

Where the Group participates in a syndicated loan not as the lead bank, the Group classifies all debis
{including the syndicated loan) of the customer into the higher risk group of debts as determined by the
tead bank, participating banks and the Group,

The Group is also reguired to use the resulis of debt classification as provided by CIC at the date of
classification 1 adjust the results of its internal classification of debts, Where debts and off-balance
sheet commitments of one customer is classified by the Group into a group of debts with lower risk as
compared to those provided by CIC, the Group 1s required 1o classify such debis and off-balance sheet

commitments to the group of debis as provided by CIC.
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year ended 3 December 20005 (continued §

Before I April 2015 In accordance with Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02, amended and supplemented
by Circular 09, debt groups of rescheduled debts remain unchanged as before the reschedule provided
that the following conditions are met:

*  The debt was granted under a credit facility which does not violate any laws or regulations;

*  The reschedule of repayment term is in line with the purpose of the project as stated in the credit
agrecment;
The borrower used the debt for the correct purpose;
The borrower has a new debt repavment plan that is feasible and suitable to its business; and
The Bank and its subsidiary remains in compliance with regulations of the SBV on limits, banking
safety ratio including the maximum ratio of short-term funding being used for medium and long-
term lending in case of restructuring shor-term debts into medium-term or long-term debts.

From I April 200 §; Poim 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02 expired. Accordingly, the Group is not allowed
o reschedule debts without changing debt group as mentioned above.

Specific allowance for credit losses

In accordance with the requirements of Circular 02 and Circular 09, the specific allowance for credit
losses at the end of annual accounting period (31 December) is calculated using the allowance rate for
each debt classification of cwistanding balance of debts at the last working day of November less the
allowed value of collateral assets. Specific allowance rates applied to each group of debis were as
Tl lowvs;

Allowance rafe
Group 1 - Current debis ¥a
Giroup 2 - Special mentioned debis 5%
Group 3 = Sub-standard debis 0¥
Group 4 - Doubtful debis %%
Group 5 - Loss debts 100%%

The allowed value of collateral assets is determined in accordance with the following principles as set
out in Circular 02:

»  Collateral asset with value of YND30 billion or more for debts 10 related parties or other parties
subject to credit restriction under Article 127 of Law on Credit Instinations and collateral asset with
vilue of YND200 billicn or more must be valuved by a licensed asset valuation organisation; and

*  (dher than the above, collateral nssets are valued in accordance with the Group’s internal policies
and processes.
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vear ended 3 December 2005 (continmed )

Allowed values of collateral assels are subject to the following caps:

Maximum

Type of collateral assels allowed ratio
(a} Customers’ deposits in VMND [ 025
(b) Gold billets, except for the types of gold specified in item (i) below; customers

deposits in foreign currencies 959

r () Government bonds, transferable instruments. valuable papers issued by the |

Bank, saving deposit certificates, centificates of deposit, bills and notes issued

by other credit institution or foreign bank branches:

= With & remammg term of below | year Y5ty

*  With a remaining term of between | vear 1o 5 years B5%

*  With a remaining term of over 5 years BO%
(d) Securities issued by other credit institutions and listed on a stock exchange 0%
{e) Securitics issued by other enterprises and listed on a stock exchange 65%
(f) Unlisted securities and valuable papers. except lor the tvpes of securities

specified in item () above, issued by other credit institutions registered for

listing on a stock exchange; 0%

Unlisted securities and valuable papers. except for the types of securities

specified in item (¢) above, issued by other credit institutions notl registered

for listing on a stock exchange 0%
(g} Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises registered for

listing on a stock exchange; 0%

Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises not registered for

listing on & stock exchange 10%
(hy Real estates 50%
(i) Gold billets not having quoted price, other tvpes of gold and ather collateral

Asse1s 30

Collateral assets that do not satisfv the legal conditions as specified in Point 3, Anicle 12 of Circular

02 gre deemed to have rero allowed value.

3



(i)

fiv)

fv)

()

fii)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Jodni Siock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HM
34A - 2B Hon Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward flasned under Clrenlar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam WAL TT-NHNN daied 31 December 214
Motes to the eonsalidated fnancial sisiements for the of the Stare Bank of Vieman)

year ended 31 December 2015 (continned )

General allowance for credir losses

In accordance with Circular 02, a general allowance for credit losses at the end of annual accounting
period (31 December) is made at 0,75% of the outstanding balance of debts except for deposits with
and loans 1o other credit institutions and debts which are classified as Loss debts at the last working
day of November.

Writing-off bad debis

In accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09, loans and advances to customers are written-off against
the allowance when they have been classified to Group 5 or when borrowers have been declared
bankrupt or dissolved (for borrowers being organisations and enterprises) or borrowers are deceased or
missing {for borrowers being individuals).

Loans and advances to customers written-ofT against allowance are recorded as off-balance sheet items
for following up and collection, The amounts collecied from loans and advances to customers
previously written-off, including proceeds from sales of collaterals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income U TECEipt,

Provision for off-balance sheet commitmenis

In accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09 the debt classification of off-balance sheet
commitments is done solely for risk management, credit quality supervision of credit granting
activities. The Group i5 nol required to make provision for off-balance sheet commitments, except
where the Group has been required to made payment under the guarantee contract, in which case the
pavment on behalf is classified and allowance for credit losses is made in accordance with the
accounting policy as described in Note 4(1).

Debts purchasing activities

Purchased debiv

The purchased debts are recognised as loans/other receivables at purchase prices, Interest income is
recogmised in the consolidsted statement of income on accrual basis, except for intercst income
attributable to the period before the purchase date is deducted from the carrying valoe of purchased
debis,

Allowance for purchased debts

I'he purchased debis are classified into risk group not lower than the risk group classified by the seller
before selling and allowance is made in accordance with accounting policy as described in Note 4(f).
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year ended 3 December 2005 (conthnued )

Held-for-trading securities

Classification

Held-for-trading securities are securitics acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-
term or for the purpose of short-term profit-taking.

Recognition

The Group recognises held-for-trading securities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of these securities (trade date accounting).

Measurement

Held-for-trading securities are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. Allowance for
diminution in value is made when the market value is fower than the book value,

For listed held-for-trading securities, the market price is the closing price of securities obiained from
the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange or from the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the reporting date,

For unlisted held-for-trading securities that have been registered on the unlisted public company market
(“the UPCom market™), the market price is the closing price obtained from the UPCom market at the

reporting date.

For unlisted held-for-trading securities that have been registered on the Over-The-Counter ("OTC™)
market, the market price is the average of the transaction prices quoted by three securities companies
having charter capital of more than VND300 billion at the reporting date.

For other unlisted held-for-trading securities where the market price of those securitics cannot be
determined reliably, no allowance is made and such securities are stated ol cost.

The allowanee for diminution in value of held-for-trading securities as mentioned above is reversed il
the recoverable amount increases after the allowance being recognised. An allowance is reversed only
to the extent that the securities’ carrying amounts do not exceed the carrying amounts that would have
been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Derecognition

Held-for-trmding securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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year ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Investment securitics

Classificatlon

Invesiment securitics include available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities. The Group
classifies investment securitics a1 purchase date as available-for-sale securities or held-to-maturity
securitics. In accordance with Official Letter No. 2601/ WHNN-TCKT dated 14 April 2009 issued by
the 5BV, the Group is allowed 1o reclassify investment securities maximum one time after the initial
classification at purchase date.

Available-for-sale securities;

Available-for-sale securities are debt securities or equity securities which are bought and intended to
b held for an indefinite period and may be sold at any time.

Held-to-maruriny securilies;

Held-to-maturity securities are debt securities with lixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
where the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity.

Recognition

The Group recognises investment securities on the date it becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions
of these securitics (trade date accounting).

Measurement
Equity securifics

Available-for-sale equity securities are stated at cost, which includes purchase price plus any directly
attributable transaction costs such as brokerage fees, transaction fees, information fees and bank
charges (if any}. Subsequently, these securities are recognised at the lower of book value and market
vailue with the loss being recognised in the consolidated statement of income,

For listed available-for-sale equity sccurities, the market price is the closing price of securities obtained
from the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange and the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the reporting date.

For unlisted available-for-sale equity securities that have been registered on the UPCoM market, the
market price is the closing price at the reporting date.

For unlisted available-for-sale equity securities that have been registered on the Over-The-Counter
(“OTC™) market, the market price is the average of the transaction prices quoted by three securities
companies having charter capital of more than VN300 billion at the reporting date.
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For other securities whose market prices cannot be determined reliably are stated at cost.
Debi securities

Available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at cost, which includes
purchase price plus any directly atiributable transaction costs such as brokerage fees, transaction fees,
information fees and bank charges (il any). Subsequently, these securitics are recognised at amoriised
cost {subject to amortisation of premiums and discounts) less allowance for losses (including allowance
fior credit losses and allowance for diminution in value). Premiums and discounts arising firom
purchases of debt securities are amortised to the consolidated statement of income using the straight
line method over the period from the acquisition date to the maturity date.

For listed available-for-sale debt securities, the market price is the closing price of securities obtained
from the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the reporting date,

Available-for-sale unlisted corporate debt securities and held-to-maturity unlisted corporate debt
securifies are stafed al cost less allowance for credit losses in accordance with the requirements of
Circular 02 and Circular 09 as deseribed in Note 4(1).

Post-acquisition interest income of available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity debt
securities is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis. Interest income
which iz amributable to the period before sequisition date is deducted from the carrying amount.

The allowance for losses on investment securities as mentioned above is reversed if the recoverable
amount increases after the allowance being recognised.  An allowance is reversed only to the extent
that the investments securities’ carrying amounts do not exceed the carrying amounts that would have

been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Derecognition

Investment securitics are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the securities have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Special bonds issued by Vietnam Asset Management Company (“VAMC™)

Special bonds issued by VAMC are valuable papers issued by VAMC to purchase the Group's bad
debis.

The Group accounts for bad debts sold in exchange for special bonds in sccordance with the guidance
in Offficial Letter Mo, B499NHNN-TCKT dated 14 November 2013 issued by the SBY and Official
Letter Mo, 925/NHNN-TCKT dated 19 February 2014 issued by the SBY. These special bonds are
classified as held-to-maturity securities, measured initially a1 par valve at tanssction date and
snbzequently measured at par value less alloseanee for loszes,
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In exchange of cach bad debt sold 1o VAMC, the Group receives a corresponding special bond issued
by VAMC. Par value of the special bond is equal to the camrying value of bad debt sold net off specific
allowance which was made but not vet utilised.

After completing the procedures of selling bad debts, the Group writes down the book value of bad
debis, uses specific allowance made but not vet ulilised and derecognises interest receivables recorded
in the off-balance sheet account. Al the same time, the Group recognises the special bonds issued by
VAMC as debt securities issued by local economic entities.

Far the special bonds issued by VAMC, specific allowance is calculsted and made in accordance with
the guidance in Circular No, 192013 TT-NHNN dated 6 September 2013 issued by the SBY regulating
the purchase, sale and handling of bad debts of VAMC and Circular Mo, 142015 TT-NHNN dated 28
August 2014 isswed by the SBY amending and supplementing certain articles of Circular 19.
Accordingly, the minimum specific allowance required 1o make each year during the term of the special
bonds is the positive difference between 20% of the par value of the special bonds less the collected
amount of the underlying bad debts during the vear. Annually within 5 consecutive working days
before the due date of special bonds, the Group s required to make the above specific allowance once
and is not required to make general allowance for these special bonds, Allowance for special bonds is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments are investments in equity instruments of entitics where the Group has no
control or significant influence. These long-term imvestments are initially stated at cost.  Subseqguent
1o the initial recognition, these investments are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in valee,

Allowance for diminution in value of long-term investments is required if the investees suffer losses,
except when the loss was anticipated by the Group’s management before making the investment . The
allowange for diminution in value is equal (o the difference between the actual capital contributed by
all mvestors and the actual equity multiply (x) with the percentage of actual capital contributed by the
Giroup over total actual capital contributed by all investors at the reporting date.  The allowance is
reversed if the recoverable amount mereases afier the allowance being recognised.  An allowance is
reversed only to the extent that the mvestment’s carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount
that would have been determined if no allowance had been recognised.
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Other assets

Other assets, except for receivables from credit activities, are stated as cost bess allowance for losses
on other assets,

Allowance for losses on other assets are made based on the overdue status of receivables or expecied
losses on undue receivables which may occurred when an economic organisation is bankrupted or
liquidated; or debtor is missing, running away, being prosecuted, in prison, under a trial or pending
execution of sentences or deceased, The allowance expenses are accounted as the operating expenses
in the consolidated statement of income,

For the assets which have overdue payments, the Group applied the allowance rate based on the overdue
status as stipulated in Circular No. 2282009 TT-BTC dated 7 December 2009 issued by the Ministry
of Finance as follows:

Owerdue status Allowance raie
From & months 1o less than | vear 308
From 1 to less than 2 years 508
From 2 to less than 3 years T%
From 3 vears and above HIEA

Allowance for losses on other assets hased on the expected logses of undue receivables are determined
by the Group afler giving consideration to the recovery of these receivables.

Tangible fixed assets

Caosr

Tangible fined assets are stated at cost bess accumulated depreciation.  The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after the tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repair, maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged 10 the consolidated statement of income in the
vear in which the costs are incurred.  In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional ¢ost of tangible fixed assets.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is computed on a steaight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets,
The cstimated useful lives are as follows:

= buildings and structures 25 - 50 years
= pifice equipment 3-8 vears
= motor vehicles B = T vears
s others 4 - 25 vears

Intangible Mixed assers

Freehold land use righis

Freehold land use rights are stated at cost and are not amortised, The initial cost of a land use right
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing
the land use rights.

Software

Cost of acquinng new software, which is not an integral pant of the related hardware, is capitalised and
treated as an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 1o 5 years,

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of o past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required 1o setile the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

Depaosits and borrowings from other eredit institutions
Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions are stated at their cost.

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are stated at their cost,
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Valuable papers issued

Valuable papers issued are stated at their costs, Costs of valuable papers issued include the proceeds
from the issuance less costs directly atiributable to the issuance.

Other pavables

Other payables are stated at their cost.

Employees’ benefits

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an emplovee who has worked for the Group for 12 months
or more (“the eligible emplovees™) voluntarily terminates his'her labour contract, the employer is
required to pay the eligible emplovee severance allowance calculsted based on years of service until

31 December 2008 and emploves’s average monthly salary of the latest 6 consecutive months prioe to
termination date.

On 24 October 2012, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 1802012/ TT-BTC (“Circular 180™)
guiding the financial treatment for redundancy allowance to employees of enterprises, Circular 180
provides that, in preparation of the 2012 financial stslements, if an enterprise’s provision for
redundancy allowance still has the outstanding balance, the enterprise must reverse the balance to other
income for 2012 and must not carry forward halance to the following vear. Accordingly, the Group
reversed the outstanding batance of provigion for severance allowance. This change in accounting
policy has been applied prospectively from 2012,

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance, effective from | January 2009, the Group and its emplovees
are required 1o contribute 1o an unemployment insurance fund managed by the Vietmam Social
Insurance Agency. The unemployment insurance paid by the Group for the years of service is recorded
as expense in the consolidated statement of income when incurs,

Capital

Share capital

Ordinary shares are ¢lassified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares, after deducting the tax effects, are recognised a5 a deduction from share premium.

Share premium

On receipt of capital contribution from shareholders, the difference between issue price and par value
of the share is credited to the share premium account in equity.
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Statutory reserves

The Bank

According to Decree No. 57201 2/ND-CP dated 20 July 2012 issued by the Government of Vietnam,
ithe Bank is required 1o make the following allocations before distribution of profits:

Annual allecation Maximum balance
Reserve to supplement shane capital 5% of profit after tax Share capital
Financial reserve 10% of profit after tax 25% share capital

The purpose of fimancial reserve is to cover the remaining losses in the course of business after such
losses being compensated by the organisations, individuals causing the loss, indemnity and the
allowance; to use for other purposes in sccordance with the laows. The statutory reserves are non-
distributable and are classified as part of equity,

Vietnam Asia Commercial Bank Asset Management Company — the subsidiary

According to Circular No, 272002/ TT-BTC dated 22 March 2002 isswed by the Ministry of Finance,
the appropriations of statutory reserves are made in accordance with the regulatory reguirements
applicable to the Bank as described above,

Other funds

Bonus amd welfare fund

Bonus and welfare fund is not required by laws, is appropriated from profit afier tax and is fully
distributable, and 15 used primarily to make payments to the Group’s employvees. Bonus and welfare
fund is allocated from profit afier tax based on the sharcholders’ decision in the Annual General
Meeting and 15 recognised as other liahilities. The appropriation rate is decided by the sharcholders in
the Annual General Meeting.

Oiher funds

Orher funds include investment and development fund and other funds which are allocated from profit
after tax based on the shareholders” decision in the Annual General Meeting. These funds are not
required by laws, are fully distributable and are recognised as pant of equity.
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Commitments and contingent liabilities

From time 1o time, the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commitments take
the torm of approved loans and overdraft facilities. The Group also provides financial guaraniees and
letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. The contingent liabilities
and commitments may expire without being advanced in whele or in part. Therefore the amounts do
not represent a firm commitment of future cash flows,

Interest ineome

The Group recognises the interest income on an accrual basis, except for the interest income from the
debts classified in Group 2 o Group 5 as defined in Note 4(F)(i) being recognised upon receipt. When
debts are classified in Group 2 to Group 5 as defined in Note 4(f)(i), the accrued interest receivable is
reversed and recorded in the off-balance sheet, except tor special cases as described in Note 16({v).
Interest income from these debis is recognised in the conzolidated statement of income upon receipt.

Interest expense

Interest expense is recopnised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income consist of fees received from settlement services, guarantee services,
cashiering services and other services, Fees and commission income are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income on an accrual basis.

Fees and commission expenses

Fees and commission expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.

Dividend income

Dhividend recerved in the form of cash 15 recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
Ciroup”s right 1o receive dividend is established.

Dividend received in the form of shares and bonus shares are not recognised as income and the Group
only records the increase in number of shares. Dividends received which are attributable to the period
before acquisition date are deducted from the carrving amount of the investment.

i3
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Operating lease pavments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line: basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income except (o the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity,

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the raxable income for the vear, using tax rates enacted at
the reporting date. and any adjustment to tax payvable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and ligbilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrving amount of assets and liabilities using the iax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred 1ax assel is recogmised only 1o the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share ("EPS™) for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS is caleulated
by dividing the profit or loss anributable 1o the ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effect of all dilwtive potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible
bonds and share options.

Related parties

Parties are considered 1o be related to the Group if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, or where the Group and the other party are subject to commuon control or significant
influgnce. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family members
of any individual considered 1o be a related party.
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Segment reporting

A sepment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment {geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different

from those of other segments. The Group's primary format for scgment reporting is. based on
geographical segments and the secondary format is based on business segments,

Classification of financial mstroments

Solely for the purpose of providing disclosures about the significance of financial instruments to the
Group's conselidated financial position and consolidated results of operations and the nature and extent
of risk arising from financial instruments, the Group classifies its financial instruments as follows:

Financial assets

Fimamcial avsets at fair value theough profit or loss

A financial asset ot fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset that meets either of the following
conditkons:

*  Itis classified by the Group as held-for-trading. A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading
if:

= itis acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking: or

- itis a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

*  Lpon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity fmvestments

Held-to-malurity investments are non-derivative financial assets with Mixed or determinable payment
and a fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

®  those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as fnancial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
those that the Group designates us available-for-sale; and
those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.
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Lenaarey covned o iverblps

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment that are
not quoted in an active market, other than those:

= that the Group intends 1o sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified as held-for-
trading, and those that the Group on initial recognition designates as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss;
that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; or

»  for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because
of credit deterioration, which are classified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assers

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available
for sale or those are not classified as:

*  loans and receivables:
*  held-to-maturity investments: or
= [financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial Mabilities

Fimancial labilities at fair valve through profic or loss

A financial lisbility at fair value through profit or loss s a financial liability that meets either of the
following conditions:

= It is classified by the Board of Directors as held-for-trading. A financial liability is classified as
held-for-trading if:

- it is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;

- there is evidence of a recent pattern of shori-term profit-taking; or

- itisadervative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument ).

®  Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Finarciof Nabilitfes carried of amortised cosi
Financial labilities which are not classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are classified as financial linbilities carried &t amortised cost

The above described classification of financial instrumenis is solely for presentation and disclosure
purposes and is not immended to be a description of how the financial nstruments are measured.
Accounting policies for mensurement of financial labilities are disclosed in other relevani nofes,

NIl balances

Items or balances required by Circular 49 that are not shown in these consolidated financial statements
indicate nil balances,

Cash on hand, gold and gemstones

122015 31/12/2014
VD VMND
Cash on hand in VND IE2, 456,500,700 182,888, 710,800
Cash on hand in foreign currencies 43.387.053,145 26,343,768, 148
Gold 108, 706,689,690  148,081,487.440

334.550,243,535 357,314,966, 388
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Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

Balance with the BV consist of a compulsory reserve for liquidity and a current account.

Under the 5BY's regulations relating to the compulsory reserve, banks ane permitted o maintain a
floating balance for the compulsory reserve requirement. The menthly average balance of the reserve
must not be less than compulsory reserve requirement rates multiplying with the preceding month's
average balances of deposits in scope as follows:

Compulsory reserve requirement rate

Deposits in scope

I 2015 Jzzod
Preceding month's average balances of
Crsfomers:
Deposits in foreign currencies with term of less than 12 months £.00%% B.00%%
Deposits in foreign currencies with term of 12 months and above &.008% 6.00%%
Depaosits m VND with term of less than 12 months 3, 00%% 3.00%%
Depaosits m VND with term of |2 months and above 1.00% 1.00%%
Cherseas credil instifulions:
Deposits in foreign curmencies 1.00%: 10045
3122015 31122014
VD VD
Current account and compulsory reserve
= InVND 430 586,082,718 644,773,522 548
= InUSD 74,974,607 399 54,468 508,742

F06.560,690,117 659,242,031 290
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Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Depasits with other credit institutions
Current secounts

= In VNI

= In foreign currencies

Term deposits
= In ¥VND

Loans to other credit institutions
= [n foreign currencies

31/12/2015
VND

416,008,491,148
79,023,721,063

3. 800,000,000, (00

31122014
VND

326,779,544,478
142,243, 868,803

1, a0M0, (M0, MR, 0D

4.205,032.212,211

284.570,000.000

2,069,023.413.281

4.579,602.212.211

2.009,023.413,28]

Term deposits with and loans to other credit institutions categoried by debt group is as follows ;

Group 1 - Current debts

3122015
VIND

4.084,570,000,000

31122014
VND

| 600,000, 000,000
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Held-for-trading securities

1122015 Jnzong
VND VND
Equity securities issued by domestic economic entities 107,527,745,273 22.450,370,885 i
Allowance for diminution in value of held-for-trading
securities (i) (3.292.108,726)  (4.393.751,738)
104,235,636,547  18.056,619,147 |
Held-for-trading securities categorised by listing status are as follows:
SL/1ZI0NE 31272014
VIND VD
Equity securities
®*  Listed 107,023,745,273 18655047 347
»  De-listed 304,000,000 3,795.323,538

107527,743,273

22,4503 70,885

Movements in allowance for diminution in value of held-for-trading securities during the vear were as

follows:

015 2014

YND VND
Opening balance 4.393,751,7338 22,464 33K.151
Allowance made during the vear 2243155444 | 52,174,400 1
Allowance reversed during the vear (3,344 798 456)  (18.222.760.813) |

|

Closing balance 3.292.108,726 4,393,751,738 :
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Loans and advances to customers

Loans 1o domestic economic entities and individuoals
Loans finaneed by entrusted funds
Discounted valuable papers

Loan portfolio by loan group 1z as follows:

Growp 1 = Current loans

Group 2 - Special mentioned loans
Group 3 - Sub-standard loans
Group 4 = Doubefil loans

Giroup 5 - Loss loans

Loan portfolio by term is as follows:

Short-term loans
Medium-term loans
Long=term loans

Foarm BOSTCTD-HN

[fissued wnder Cireular No.
A LTT-NHNN dated 31 December 20014
aff tfe Siate Bank of Vietnaw)

INYIms Jnxm4
VND VND
20,227.299.432. 186  15,781,658,537,729
21.425,353.343 40,3 12,025,000
18,5987 210,880 :
20,267,711,996,409  15,821,970,562,729
ININS 317122014
VYND YND

19078, 104,378,476
730,827,130,765
9,736,187, 288
71,959,903, 858
377.084,396,022

15,274,146.043,93]
179,829 278 083
39,786 461,098
93,636,796,754
234,571,982, 863

20,267.711.9%6.409

15,821.970.562,729

JU/122015
VND

5.235,772,704372
5,030,44%,139,903
10,001,491,152,134

311272014
VND

6,742,694,795,457
4,235,951 202,326
4,843,324.474.946

20.267.71 1,996,409

15,821.970.562,729
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Loan portfolio by industry is as follows;

Construction

Trading, manufacturing and processing
Warchousing, fransporiation and communication
Agriculture and forestry

Individuals and others

Loan portfolio by type of borrowers is as follows:

Joint stock companies
Limited liability companies
State-owned enterprises
Individuals and others

Loan portfolio by currency is as follows:

Louns in VND
Loans in foreign curmencies
Loans in gold

Form BOSTCTD-HM

{lszaneal wnder Cirenlar Ko
L0V HTT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
of e State Burk of Fiehram)

311272015
VND

5,310,060,542 985
3,463,664,226,191
074,976,692,739
678,540,081,392
Q840,470 453,102

INN22014
VND

2,548,683,097.030
3263616548181
1.117.869.363. 631

813,190,923,266
8.076.61 0,629,921

2026771 1 996, 0%

15,821 970,562,729

311272015
VND

13,722,246,527.499
3403315200276
434,000,000
3140716, 268,634

3122014
VND

8,234,307 930,607
2,741,199,162,365

71.812.406,600
4,774,451 063,157

20,267.711,996.409

15,821,970,562,729

JArms
Y&D

19,760,604, Toh, 849
427.,537.356,174
79.569.873,386

311272014
VAND

14,783.670,457.256
539,429.230,726
498,870,874, 747

20,267,711,996,400

15,821,970,562,729

5 == 0
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Vietnam Asin Commercial Joint Siock Bank Form BIETCTD-HN
344 - 34B Han Thuyven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {lesmed mnder Chrenlar N,
Hai Ha Tl'l.rl!; District, Hanaei, Vietnam AWIDIETT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
MNotes to the eonsolidated finaneial statements for the af the State Bank of Vieman)

vear ended 3 December 2005 (continued)

Allowance for loans and advances to customers

Allovwance for loans and advances to customers consists of

1122015 /122014
YN VNI
General allowanee (i) 140,710,663, 286 05,282, 000,000
Specific allowance (ii) RT3, 152,585 B3,504.631,016

228.010.817.871 188,786,631.016

Movements in general allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers were as follows:

205 2014

VMDY VMDD
Opening balance 103,282,000,000 78,368, 300,000
Allowance made during the vear 75,293,762, 702 35 951 000,000
Allowance reversed during the year (30865097 4160 (13,037 300,000
Closing balance 140, 710,665,286 103,282 000,000

Movements in specific altowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers were as follows:

2015 2014

VD VND
Opening balance B3 504630016  114,517.191.492
Allowance made during the year 114,130,360,895 14.317,182,103
Allowance reversed during the vear (21,650988,974) (19.639.516,530)
Allowance utilised during the vear (88,683 B30352)  (15,690.226,09)
Closing balance B7T.300.152,585 B3,504.631.016

43
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11.

Vietmam Asin Commercial Jaint Stock Bank

244 - MB Han Thayen, Pham Dinh Ho Wird

Hai Ba Trung DMstrict, Hanod, ¥ietnam

Nobes to the consolidated financial statemenis for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 (continued )

Debts purchasing activities

Purchased debts in foreign currencies

Principal and interest of purchased debds are as follows:

Principals of purchased debts
Imterest receivables of purchased debis

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{Fesned under Cirenlar No.

SR ATT-NHNN aied 31 Decenrher 2014
af the Sraie Bank of Vietaam)

31/12/2015
VND

38,9091 877,497

322014
VIND

IS 3122014
YND VND
38.901,877.497
2.503,815,063 -
41 497 692,562
44
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12.

Vietmam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

J4A - MB Ham Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hui Ba Trung District, Hanoi, ¥ietnam

MNotes to the consolidated financial siatements for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 (continued )

Investment securities

Availuble=for=sale securities
Deht secuwities

»  Government bonds (i)

Eguiry seciwrities
*  Eguity securities issued by domestic economic
entities

Allowance for available-for-sale securities
v Allovwance Tor dumoniation in valie (i)

Held-to-maturity securitics (excluding special
bonds isswed by VAMCO)

Dbt secrritivs

*  Ronds issued by domestic economic entities

Allowance for held-to-maturity seourities
& Cienersl allowanee for credit loszes (i)

Special bonds issued by VAMC (iv)
= Special bonds” par value
*  Allowance for special bonds

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{Tssued urider Circulor No
SO ETT-NHNN dated 31 December 2074
of the Stare Bank of Viersane)

3122015
VND

8,520.914.155,139

131,122.400,000

31/12/2014
VND

10,069 408,726,385

58,922 400,000

8.652,036,555,139

{41.831.768,000)

£.610.204,787,139

10,128,331,126,385

10,128,331,126.385

X 400,000,000_000
- (ERILEIR IR
397,000,000,000
2699049080, 750  1,048,794,705,580
(253,690,641 602) (60,482,030,196)
2,446.259,348, 148 9§8,312,675,384
11,056.464,135,287  11,513,643,801,769
43
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTH-HN
A - 4B Han Thoyen, Pham Dinh He Ward {lsrwed under Cirenlar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam SY20IHTT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
Motes to the consolidaied Minancial statemenis for the of the State Bank of Vietraw)

vear ended 31 December 2005 (contfinued)

Investment securities classified as assets with credit risk categorised by debt group are as follows:

31/1272015 3122004
YND VD
Group | — Current debis - A00.000,000.000

As at 31 December 20135, the Group pledged government bonds with the par value of YND33.200
million to the SBY w carry out low-value payment and overdrafi activities (31/1272014: VND3 3,000
million), pledged povernment bonds with the par value of YND220,000 million to the SBY to borrow
from other credit institutions (31/1272014: nil) and borrows from other credit institutions through
repurchase agreements of government bonds with the par value of YND7,1 13,100 mallion (3 1/1272004:
VNDE. 1 73.000 million)., See Note 18.

Movements n allowance for diminution in value of available-for-sale securities were a5 follows:

s 204

VD VD
Opening balance = =
Allowance made during the vear 41,831,768 000 -
Closing balance 41,831,768, (10 -

Movements in general allowance for credit losses of held-to-maturity securities were as follows:

2015 2014

VMDD VND
Opening balance 30000 000, 04 5,052, 500,000
Allowance reversed during the vear (3,000, 000.000) (2,152,500,000)
Closing balance - 3,000, (400, (06

This balance represenis the par value of special bonds issued by VAMC to purchase the Group®s bad
debts with the loan principal amounting to VND2, 803,053 million. The specific allowance made by
the Group until the time of selling bad debts o VAMC was VND103,103 million.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group pledged these special bonds at the State Bank of Vietnam,

46
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13.

Vietnam Asia Commereial Joln Stock Bank

J4A - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hamol, Vietnam

Mides o the consolidated financizl statements for the
vear ended 31 December 2015 {continued)

Farm BOSTCTIREHM
i iamred wnder Clrcular Vo,

SWANLTENHNN dated 31 December 2004

o the Srre Bank of Vietram)

Movements in allowance for special bonds issued by VAMC during the vear were as follows:

2015 2014
VIND YND
Opening balance 60, 482,030,196 -
Allowance made during the year 196,289,631 406 6, 482,030,196
Allowange reversed during the vear (3,081,020,000) -
Closing balance 253690064 1.602 60482030, 196
Capital contribution, long-term investmenis
Cither long-term investments consist of
311122015 3122004
Yo equity Cost Yo equity Cost
ownedd WINDy owned VMDD
Hung Yuong Assurance Corporation 11005 112.200,000.000 11.00% 112.200,000,00{
Ban Viet Healthcare Securities Investment
Fund 505% 53902194400 10000%%  106,656,272,800
Son Tra Joint Stock Company £.23% 49500000000 825% 49 500,000,000
Yen Bai Cement and Minerals Joint Stock
Company F1% 41850000000 [10.92% 41,850,000 000
Winh Hao Mineral Water Joint Stock
Company 4.23% 15,565 380,000  4.23%  15,565,380,(H
Sai Gon Technologies Incorporation T54% 13,727910000 754%  13.727.910,000
Saigon Engineering Construction
Investment Corporation { ECI1-Sai Gon) 11.00%  10,183,620,000 10.00%  10,183,620,000
Ba Ria - Vung Tau Tourist Joint Stock
Company |.61% Q060,000,000  1.61%  9.060.000,000
Minh Dam Tourist Joint Stock Company 3.01% 007 400,000  3.01% 3007400, (10
Tam Thong Real Estate Joint Stock Company 2.25% 2250000000 2.25% 2,230,010, (W)
Smartlink Card Services Joim Sioack
Company 4.00%% 2000000000  4.00%  2000,000,000
International Transportation and Trading
Joint Stock Company (ITC) 10.00% 204,720,000 10.00% 04,720,000
Saigon Jewelry Jomt Stock Company (SJC)  B.00%% 672,000,000  3.00% 672,000,000
Ho Chi Minh City Credit Guarantee Fund
for Small and Medium-sized Enterprise 0.25% SO0.000.000  0.25% SR (W00, (O
Lae Cai Chemical Industry & Investment
Toint Swck Company LE1% A30000000 01 1% 330, (R0, (MO
Petrolimex Group Commercial Joint Stock
Bank .00 - A 1T 150,000,000, (00
Viet A Gold Jomt Stock Company (.00 3.00% ELLTRITTRE
Construction and Real Estste Service Joinl
Stock Company (CDF) 0100 - L0 220,000,400
315.653.224.400 518.927.302.800
47
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15.

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Siock Bank Form BOSTCTIRHN

34A - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dink He Ward {esmed wnder Cireular Mo

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam ARINATT-NHNN dted 31 Decenber 2004

Notes to the consolidated Mnancial statements for the year of the State Bak af Vieam)

ended 31 December 2003 (continued}

Intangible fixed assets

15 Freehald lnnd

use rights Software Oihers Total
VNI VMDD VNI VM

Cost

Crpening balance 104,299 804,726  73,2B0,3606,486  4,941,235385  1H2,5320,406.597

Additions T5.443.267.460 21427295134 T50.000,000 97620562594

Disp-:naals (56417244, 445 - - (56,417.244,443)

Wrmten off - {182,368 406) - (182, 368.406)

Closing balance 123,325,827.741 94525293214 5.691,235385 223.542.356,3140

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance - 67627098810 4941235385 2 72,568.334.195

Charge for the vear - 7016, 769,679 | 25,006,004 T.141.769,683

Written off . (182,368.406) . (182.368.406)

Closing balance - T446] 500,083 506235380 TO 527735472

Net book valoe

Opening balance 104,299 804,726 4633267676 - 10M.953.072.402

Clasing balance 123325.827,741  20.063.793,131 624999996  |44,014,620.868
a0



15.

Vietnam Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
344 - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dink He Ward
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Yietnam

Motes to the consolidated financial statemenis for (he vear

ended 31 December 205 (continued)

Intangible fixed assets (continued)

Form BOSTCTI-HM
{ewed wnder Clrowdar Mo,
AF2TT-NHNN dated 31 December 204
ot St Bank of Vietnam)

214 Freehold lnnd

use rights Software Others Total

YND WM VD VMDD

Coasl
Orpening balance 9 TRIATZ.182 TIZ2R0366486 4941235385 138003274053
Transfer from tangzible
fisned nsseis 44.518.132.544 3 - 44518132544
Closing balance 104,299 804,726  T32R0.366.486 4941235385 |B252]. 406597
Accumulated amortisation
Opening halance - 5409244408027 4.633.8B31,525 50, 558,281,327
Charge for the year = 12,702,649, 008 307,403,860 13010052 868
Closing halance - BTE2T098810 4.941,235385  72.568,334,195
Net book value
Upening balance LOTRIATLIRY 18355016684 307,403,860 78,444,992 726
Closing balance 104,299,804,726  5,633,267,676 - 109,953,072,402

As at 31 December 2015, included in intangible fixed assets are assets costing VNDT7, 704,582, 840)
which were fully depreciated, but which are still in active use (31/12/2014: VND29.507.975.320),

51




16.

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank
S4A - 4B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam
Motes to the consolidated Mnancial siatements for the vear

ended 3 December 2005 (contimued)

(ther assets

Reeeivables

& Receivables from Matiomal Secunties Incorporation
{“NSI") (i)

Advances for business cooperation contracts {ii)
Receivables from sales of shares (iii)

Construction in progress (iv)

Advances for court fees

Advances for office renovations

Advances to members of the Board of Management
Dreposits for office remals

Deposits at Vietnam Expon lmport Commercial Joint
Stock Bank

Deductible value added tax (Mote 37)

Deposits st Hoa Binh Securities Joint Stock Company
& Oihers

Accroed interest and fees receivahle

*  [ntersst receivables from loans and advances to
CUsIomers (v)

*  |nterest receivables from investment securities

* Interest receivables from deposits

*  Interest receivables from advances for business
cooperstion contracts (i)

& Interest receivables from deposits with and foans to ofber
credit institutions

Other assets

=  Receivables relating to foreclosed assets awaiting for
resolulion (vi)

Foreclosed assets (vii)

Prepaid expenses

Mauterials and tools
Depaosit books, white promissory notes, cheqgues
Other receivables

Form HOSTOCTD-HN
{Fesmed unier Cirenlar Mo
SWAGPALTTNHNN dated 3] Decenher 2014

af the Srare Bank of Fietnam)
2015 SI/ 22014
YND VD

454,196,795,335  186,333,955,059
450,000,000,000 450,000,000, 000
246, 200,000,000 £3,331,657.000
11,733,005,669 52.576,008,54
£,800,394, 864 9937 880,880
2.064,151,405 11,378,975, 141
25200425 151 EOT9 281,905
9,002, 846,660 6,626,913,954

5942 250,000 5.942,250,000
666,678,558 4233 806,031

- 817.200.391,(00

19,062,940, 105 15,364,363.293

1,213, 189487747  1.633,0014,484 806

1.963,571.524,997 1,657,548 309,004
492,615, 736,366  569,312,561,393
471.015,752401 2

72,500,000, 000

6,169,347 221 1,903, 194,445

3005872361055 21.228.764,004,842

177.298,840,707  177,298,840,707
175331360425  4AT6.848,087.425
11,016.131.224 1 2,450,850, 706

Receivable relating 1o a selling securities forward contract 14, 280,000,000 | 4. 280,000,000

31.302.160.605 2.476,526,626
3,297952,112 1377935084
ZROAHE BE26 -

404,815,933, 899  090,732,240,348

4,623.877,782,701 4,552,510,790,196

52
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(1)
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(i)

(iv)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BRETCTI-HN
34A - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward Tezued under Clrenilar No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Victnam AH20ILTT-NHNN daved 31 December 2014
Miotes to the comsolidated Mnancil siatements for the year I-!,f.l'iillfn"c—fﬂ."*! Bek 1!-’ J"'I‘-I-!fﬂ-l'il'ﬂ_.l
ended 31 December 2008 (continued)
Receivables from NSI consist of:

X205 3122014

VNN VD

Deposits for securities transactions and advances for
securitics purchase 366,299,049 420 30,000,000.000
Receivables From sales of secunties {T+3) BT R07. 745915  I32,008.416.174
Advances for purchasing unlisted shares - 4,325,538,883

454,196,795,335  186,333,955,059

Advances for business cooperation contracts are related to business cooperation contracts between the
subsidiary and International Trade Development and Financial Investment Joint Stock Company
(“Investee™} to develop the complex project of restaurant - hotel, commercial center, apartments and
offices for rent at 166 Truong Chinh, Dong Da, Hanoi. Total investment capital for this project is
VD924, 700,000,000, in which each party contributing 50% equivalent to VIND462,550,000.000,
After completion of the project. the Group is entitled to 55% of total interest derived from the project.
Based on the progress of the contract, the two parties issued a minute dated 5 November 2015 and
accordingly Investeo has to pay for the Group VINDTZ.500 million of interest related to advance of
VMD250,000 million. This interest receivable will be fully paid by Investeo in 2016,

Receivables from sales of shares are related to share transfer contracts and annexes signed with the
buyers regarding the transfers of shares of Petrolimex Group Commercial Joint Stock Bank and Saigon
Cargo Service Corporation,  Accordingly, the Group transferred substantially risks and rewards of
ownership of these shares to the buyers ot transaction dates indicated in the contracts and these
receivables will be fully settled by the buyers in 2016,

Maovements in construction in progress during the yvear were as follows:

015

YD
Opening balance 52.576,008,.54]
Transfer 1o tangible fixed assets (23,407 815.892)
Transfer 10 prepaid expenses (17,435, 186,980)
Closing balance 11,733,005,.669




(vl

(vi)

(vii)

Vietmam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank
244 - MBE Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh He Ward
Hwi Ba Trong District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Form BUSTCTD-HN

Hlened under Circrlar Mo,

AR HTT-NHNN dated 31 Dycember 2014

Moies bo the consolidated financinl stalements for the year of the Stare Bank af Vietnam)
ended 31 December 2015 (continued §

Details of construction in progress al the vear-end are as follows:

311272015 3171272014
VND VND

Transaction Center construction project 7371606023 7.371.606,023
Nadara credit software 3028, 144,000 3.,028,144,000
Internal credit rating svstem 977,134,500 977,134,500

Quy Whon Branch construction project 356,121,146 356.121.146
IT infrastructure - 23,407.815,892
Construction project at 34 Han Thuven - 17.435,1 86,980

11,733.005,6649 52.576,008.541

Included in interest receivables from loans and advances to customers as a1 31 December 2015 were
interest receivables from three customers amounting 1o VND408.693 million with the roadmap for
resolving until 31 December 20017 approved by the State Bank of Vietnam, As a result, the Group did
not apply the accounting policy as described in Note 4(x) for these interest receivables.

This balance represents the receivable relating to a real estate forward contract between the Group and
Huvnh Thong Trading - Services Company Limited in which Huynh Thong Company will dispose the

real estates in its investment project to pay the Group.

Dietails of forechosed assets are as follows:

J122015 31122004
VNI YND
Foreclosed assets of the Banbk:
s Received from Lan Anh Coo, Lid 147,755, 100, (W0 -
* Received from MNhat Thai Trading Co., Lid 0,942 580,000
* Received from Saigon - Ha MNoi Investment Joint
Stock Company A 50 000 (b Ok
Foreclosed assets of the subsidiary:
= Received from individual customers 16,633 680,425 26,848,087 425
175,331 360,425 476,848,087 425
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Vietnam Asia Commerciol Jaint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
34A - B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward itermed under Circwdar No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Viemam AW ATT-NHRN dated 3] December 2014
Notes to the consolidated finuncial statements for the vear of the Stase Bark of Vietnam)

ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Borrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam

J12E01S S04
VIND VIND
Borrowings . 109.436.812.290

This is a loan from the SBY under the Refinancing Agreement based on VAMC s special bonds with
original term of & months and bear interest rte of 4.50% per annum.

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

J1A122015 3171220014
YND VND

Demand deposits
= In¥ND 320,920.378,989 317682, 185,030
Term deposits
= InVND 4 690,000,000,000 2,520,000, 000,000
* In foreign currencies - 233,706, D00, (00

5010920, 378,989 3,071,388, 185,030
Borrowings
= In VND (i) T7.372.721,062,000 8501,239.810,000
* |n foreign currencics 481, 719,356,317 63,871,256,498

7854440418337  £565,113.066,498

12,865,360,797,326 11.636,501.251.528

Included in borrowings in VNI as at 31 December 2015 were VIND493, 781, 700,000 which are secured
by government bonds with the par value of VND220,000 million; VND7357.500,062,000 of
repurchase agreements for government bonds with the par value of VND7.113.100 million
(317127200 4; VNDEATS 710,810,000 of repurchase agreements for government bonds with the par
value of YNDE, 173,000 million). See Note 12,
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19.

Vietnam Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank

HA - 3B Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hamoi, Vietnam

Motes to the consolidated fnancial statements for (he year
ended 3 December 2015 (continued)

Deposits from customers

Demand deposiis
» InVND

= [n foreign currencies

Term deposiis
= InVND
= In foreign currencies

saving deposits
Diervicarred

* In¥ND

* In foreign currencies
Term

' InVND

* In foreign currencies

Margin deposits
r InWVND
* In foreign curencics

Special capital sccounts
= InVND

= In loreign curmencics

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{Irsuied wider Clrcular No
SO LTTNHNN dated 31 Dhecvanber 2004
aof the Stare Bonk of Fisfaoam)

11272015
YND

837.833.511,367
27, 714,350,678

4.316,477.041,522
B7,346,572,500

| 2,208,367.840
201.802.432

18.041,959,311,654
B42,769,693.955

233,995,955,260
19.287.851,99%

4,580,978
830,506

J1ALZ04
YD

| 129493 020,111
11.680.055,08]

2,970,589,628,112

13,296,576,711
736,091,525

15,023, 748,463,516
567,770.654,505

54.362.269.463
8.062,223,786

4,534,787
806,093

24,439,799 870,488

19,779, 746,323,690

Deposits from customers by type of customers are as follows:

Joint stock companies, limited liability companies
and private companics

Slate-owned enterprises

Foreign invested companies

Individuals and others

I 122ms
VND

4,671,676,653,266
504,443, 979,959
22,389,558 687
19,239 289,678,576

3171272014
VND

3,965,065,644,137
48324383 638
6.617.576.683

|5, 759 738719 232

24,439,799,870, 488

[9, 779, b, 323,69
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21.

23,

{1)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joinl Stock Bank

344 - 4B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hui B Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam

Motes to the consolidated Anancinl statements for the year
ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Entrusted funds received

Form BOSTCT-HMN

{Issared weder Circalar Mo,

S ATT-NENN daved 31 December 2014

of the State fank of Flatnam)

These balances represent the funds in VND received from the State Bank of Vietnam and The Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam for the Group to lend following

the instruction of these entrustors,

Valuable papers issued

Certificates of deposit
= Certificates of deposit with werm of less than 12 months

Other liabilities

Taxes pavable 1o the State Treasury (Mote 37)
Court fees payable

Remittances payable

Amounts awaiting for seftlement

Bonus and weltare fund (i)

Dividend payvable

Periodical interest for deposits

Customers’ amaounts awaiting for settiement
Sharcs transfer

Unearned revenue

Other payvables

3122015 317122014
VND VND
8.477,026,500 "
317122015 311272014
VND VND
29,679,469, 180 5,649,522 590

21,499 588 656
13,658,565,938
13.200.492.51 1
12,932,833,769

1.609.453, 756
12,120, 720,163
12,366,913.363

6,636,000,584

Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the vear were as fiollows:

Opening balance
Transfer from equity

Appropriation during the vear (Note 23)
Utilisation during the vear

Closing balance

6,566,680 834
4.707,155.240 4.318,701,870
S 00, D0, D00 <, T, EW R, 00
469,860,000 4659 860,000
20,231,108 16,315,081
3.225.390,294 377,203,083
860,276,531 49 564, TRO, 490
s
VND
LTINS
21,325,589, 149
(8,393 356,062)
12,932,833.769
57
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(b)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD=HN
JA - 248 Han Thuyen, Pham DHok Ho Ward exmid wivder Circutar Na

Hui B Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam AW TT-NHNN daved 31 December 2014
Moles to the consalidated nancial statements for the aof the State Bank of Viernam)
vear ended 31 December 2005 [continuned)

Share capital

JLA22015 AV1IX2014
MNumber of Momber of
shares VD shures YN

Authorised share capital 349999047 3,499,990,470,000  309.800,000 3,098, 000,000,004

lssped share capital

Ordinary shares 349099047 3499990470000  3009.800,000 3,098, 00,000,000
Shares in circulation
Oirdinary shores F49.900 047 3499 900 470,000 3049.800,000 3,008, (00,000,000

All ordinary shares of the Bank have a par value of YND10,000 each. Each ordinary share is entitled
to one vote st shareholders” meetings of the Bank, Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as
declared from time to time. All ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard o the Bank’s residual
isseta,

Movements in share capital during the vear were as follows:

2015 2004
Mumber of Number of
shares YND shares YD

Balance at the begmning of
the vear 309 200,000 3,008 000,000,000 309 800,000 3 008,000, 0400, (00
Shares issued in cash during
the vear 23,130,020 231.300,200,000 .
Shares ssued through
utilisation of reserves and
share premium 17,069,027  170,690,270,000 = =

Balance at the end of the vear 349,999,047 3.499.990.470,000 309,800,000  3.098.000,000, (000

59
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Vietnom Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank

J4A - MB Han Thuyven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanod, Vietnam

Mirtes to the consolidated financial statements for the
vear ended 31 December 2003 (continued)

Net interest income

Faterest and similar income frim

Loans and advances 10 CUstomens

Inivestment securities

Deposits for securities transactions and advances for
business cooperation conlracts

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Interest and simifar expenses on

Depasits from customers

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions
Valuable papers issued

Others

Met imberest income

Form BOS TCTD-HMN

{leered wrder Circufar No

A0V TT-NHNN daded 31 December 2014
of the State Bank of Fietmam)

2015 2014
YND VND
|, 568,032,523, 388  1,288,200,556,192

702.371,184,132 492,110,497 420

S80.657.659.485
20,112, 787,517

44.609,.750,061
17,074,170,863

2871,174,154.522  1,841.994,974,536

(1.369.986,136,301) (1.182.203.620,078)
(389,463,375,875)  (247,451.657,532)
(167.313.689)

(9,178,209,501)  (13,558,771.915)

(1.768.795.035.366) (1,443,.214,04%,515)

[LI02.379.119.156 398, TRO.925.011

Al
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26.

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

JA - M B Ham Thayen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hui Ba Trung Disirict, Hanol, ¥icinam

Motes to the consolidated Ninancial stafements for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 {continued)

Net fee and commission (expenses)/income

Fee and commission income from
Settlement services

Entrusting and agent services
Cashiering services

Crhers

Fee and commission expenses on
Bettlement services

Consulting services

Cashiering services
Telecommunication expenses
(thers

Net fees and commission (expenses)income

Net loss from trading of foreign currencies

Graedns from frading of forefgn currencies
*  Spot foreign exchange confracts
= Oold trading and revaluation

Losses from fraiding of foreign currencies
* Spot foreign exchange contracts
*  Gold trading and revaluation

Net loss from trading of foreign currencies

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{fzued yader Circrlar Vo
AWM ATE-NHNN dmed 31 Decombar 2004
o e Xeave Beank of Viensom)

2015
YN

8,054 888,625
T01.628,447
288,086,410

2, 768,381,604

4
YNy

4.280.843.284
924,017,742
280,393,212
7,772.907.839

11,812.985,086

13.267.162,077

(5,536,371.651)
(T07.818.182)
(264,322,376)

(8.420.470.317)
(905,756,307)

(4,559,737.871)
(261,919.250)
(156,782.195)

(5,264, 745.662)
(521,189,256)

(15,834, 738,833)

(10,764,374,234)

(4,021,753,747)

2,502,787.843

2015
VNI

21,795,991 460
8917322938

2014
VND

16,883,487,152
231,514.283,708

30,713,314,398

248,397, 770,860

(37.593.484,537)
(257,260,429.569)

{10,087,298,575)
(328,202.539,381)

(294.853,914,106)

(338,289,837,956)

(264,140,599.708)

(89.892,067,006)

il
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18,

Victnam Asia Commercinl Joint Stock Bank

J4A - B Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung DMstried, Hamol, Vietnam

Motes o the consalidated financial stalements far the
vear ended 31 December 2015 (continued )

Net gain from trading of held-for-trading securities

2015
YND

7043310, 780
(2,245.930,198)

Gains from trading of held-for-trading securities
Losses on trading of held-for-trading securities
Allowance for diminution in value of held-for-trading
securities {MNote §)

Reversal of allowance for diminution in value of held-

(2,243,155 444)

Form BOSTCTD-HN

(Iesued pwnaer Circular Na

AR TT-NHNN deted 3T December 2004
of the Stare Bank of Fietmam)

2014
VND

55603437816
(3.117,032,523)

(152,174,400)

for-trading securities {Note 8) 3,344.798,456 18,222, 760,813
Net gain from trading of held-for-trading securities 3,901,023,59%4 68.556.991,706
Met gain/(loss) from sales of investment securities
2015 14
W™ YN
Reclassified

Gains/{(losses) from disposals of other long-term investments 68,740,104, 738

Allowance for diminution in value of available-for-sale

(38,201 ,890,522)

securities (Mote | 2051)) (41831, 7680007 =
Reversal of allowange for eredit losses of held-to-
maturity securities (Note 12{iii)) ER LRI 2,152, 5040, 0000
Net gain/{loss) from sales of invesiment securilies 29.908,336,738 (36,049 390,522)
i
fi



Vietmam Asia Commerckal Joinl Stock Bank

344 - MB Han Thayen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung INsirict, Hanoi, Vietnam

Motes tir the consolidated Nnascial stalemenis for the

Form BOSTCTR-HN
iTeened wnder Clrcwiar Vo,

A2 ATT-NHNN dated 3T December 2004

L B BN OBE BN BN BN BN BN BN 3N BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN B BN

29.

3““.

year ended 31 December 2080 8 (contimsed)

Net other income

Oelier {ncenie

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Ciains from debis trading activities
Other imcome

O lier ExpaRses
Net book value of fixed assets disposed

Penalties for contracts breach
Other expenses

Met other income

Income from investments in other entities

Dividend income from
" Diher long-term investments
* Held-for-trading securities

af the Srate Bank of Viensom)

2015
VMDY

133.518.761,201
116,012,637
14,011,849,392

204
VND
Reclassified

232,583,637
111,402,596,715
15,704.973.877

147.646,623,230

127,340.154,229

(56.417,244,445)
(86,537.001,014)
(3.993 968, 768)

(3481 8K3)

(5.332,292)

(146.948.304,227)

(B.B14.177)

127.331,340.052

698.319.003
2015 2014
VNI VD
4,598,055.219 2.249.375.207
- 6,584, 818 468

4,598.055.219

8.834.213.675




31.

Vietnoum Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank
J4A - 348 Hon Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward
Hai Ba Trung [Mstrict, Hamoi, Vieinam

Modes to the consolidaied Mnancial siatemenis Tor the

vear ended 31 December 20015 (continued )

Operating expenses

I. Taxes. duties and fees

2. balaries and related expenses
In which:

v Salaries and alfowances

w  Salary related contributions
o (lers

1. Expenses on assels

In which:

*  Depreciation and amortization expenses
v (Mfice rental

¥ Assel maintemanee exXpenses

4. Administration expenses

In which:

= Marketing, promotion and printing expenses
Non-deductible valwe added tax

Lrifivies expenses

Towols e fnsirnmeris

Telecommumication expenses

il

3. Insurance expenses

6. Allowance expenses

Form BOSTCTI-HMN

{saiend wnder Cinculor No

SR LTI-NHNN dated 31 Decenrber 2014

of the State Bank of Vieinam)
201s 24
VD VINDy
459,527,163 1.626,775. 695

233, 806,950,789

207,306,833,528
19,385,192, 436
6,914,924,775

88.901,490,629

J1 350723863
34.269,620.595
23.272,137.169

03 38R, 139,669

3020 7KT I72

191,110,629.767

P72 747 280675
In 24031 022
2,079,258 070

T15.062,182,449

0,496, 772,683
13,286, 116,603
1,279,293 163

57.503,618.172

2.331,233,150

4 688 890 144 5658 A1 4882
DRIG5I9 648 8704975 676
MM A07. 811573 T5,403,886,279
3260580 747 2042 534624
da 180 140 383 22 262308 561
22,320,398, 000 [ 7,204,057 000
- 5, 146,000,000

438 876,506,250  347.653,263,083
fr



Victnam Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HMN
3A - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward ilvaped wnder Circaifare N,
Hai Ba Troung District, Hanod, Vietaam SO S TT-NEHNN daved 37 December 2004
Motes fo the consolidated financial statements for the af the State Bank of Vietman)

year eided 3 December 2008 (continued)

Allowance expenses for credit losses

1S 204
VND YAD
Reclassified

General allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to
customers {Mote T
8 dddition 73,293 T42 702 10,95 | 000, 0
= Reversal (39,865,007 416)  (13,037.300,000)
Specific allowance for credit losses on loans and advances o
customers (Mote 10{ii))
»  Addition [ 14,130,360,895 14,317.182,103
s Reversal (21.650,988.974)  (29,639.516.530)
Allowance for special bonds of VAMC (Note 12(iv))
 Addivion G 28963 1 400 60,482,030, 196
»  Reversal (3.081,020,000) 2

32L.116648.613 72,073.395,769

65
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33.
(a)

(b)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Siock Bank

34A - M4B Han Thayen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, ¥icinam

Motes to the consolidated Niaancial siatemenis for the
vear ended 31 December 2008 {continued)

Corporate income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current tax expense
Current vear

Deferred tax expense

Corporate income tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Tax at the Bank's tax rate
Non-deductible expenses

Tux exempt income

Differences in the subsidiary”s tux rate
L'nrecognised deferred tax assets

Corporate income tax expense

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{Psxpned werder Cirenlar Mo

SN TT-NHNN daded 31 December 2014

af e State Bank of Vietnam)

2015
YND

33,362,702,713

2014
VND

12,841,098 49]

33.362,702,713 12,841 098 49]
2015 4
VND VND

115,329,345.392

60338, 141,817

25, 372,455,986
1.095,475.428
(2.967.116,725)
(1.605,117,493)
| 1.467,005,520

13,274,391,200
1,510,234,300
(1,943,527,009)

33,362,702,713

12,841,098,491
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(e)

(d)

Victnam Asia Commercial Joint Siock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
MA - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Hoe Ward (Fesmed under Circuliar No
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, ¥ietnam S92 TT-NHNN dated 31 Dicenber 2004
Moles to the consoliduied fnancial statements for the af the State Bank of Viemam)

year ended 31 December 2005 {confinuel)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Juiazzols InAaxond
Temporary Temporary
difference Tax value difference Tux value
VMDD YND VYND YND
Tax losses aL122.752.365 11467005320

The tax losses expire in the following years:

Year of expiry Status of tax review Tax losses available
31122015 3112/2014
YND VND
2020 Outstanding 52,122,752.365 -

Dieferred tax assets have nod been recognised in respest of these ilems because it is not probable tlat
future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom,

Applicable tax rate

The Bank's income tax rate is 22% for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, The subsidiary s
income tax rate is 20%% for 2015 because the subsidiary had total revenue of not more than VND20
billion. The income tax computation is subject 1o the review and approval of the tax authorities.

The usual meome tax rate applicable 1o enterprises before any incentives is 22% for 2004 and 20135,
and will be reduced to 20% from 2016.

b7
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34,

(i)

fii)

fiii)

Vietnam Asia Commercinl Join Siock Bank Form BEOSTCTD-HN
J4A - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {lvsed weder Circular N
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam LU201LTT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
Maodes (o the consolidated Nnancial statements for the of the State Bank of Vietren)

vear ended 31 December 2005 {continoed )

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamings per share for the vear ended 31 December 2015 is based on the proff
attributable to the Bank's ordinary shareholders of VND81 966,642 679 (2014: VND47,497,043,326)
and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 327,336,260 shares (2014
316,869,027 shares), calculated as follows:

Net profit attributable to erdinary shareholders

1015 204
VND VD
Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 81,966 642,679 47497.043,326
Weighted average number af ordinary shares
2015 2014
Shares Shares
Restated
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the vear 3099, 800,000 309,804,000
Effect of shares issued during the vear 17,536,260 17,069,027
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ik 31 Phasanbicn 327,336,260 326,869,027
Basic earnings per share
015 2014
YD YN
Restated
Basic camnings per share 250 |45




35.

Vietnam Asis Commercial Joini Siock Bank

J4A - 34B Han Thoyen, Pham Dah Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hamol, Vietnam

Modes (o the consalidated financial sintements for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 (continaed )

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand, gold and gemstones

Balances with the SBWV

Deposits with and loan to other credit institutions with
original term to maturity of not more than three months

Employees’ benefits

Total average number of employeess
Emplovees' income

1. Salaries and allowances

2. Bonus

3. Total imcomme { 142)

Average annual salary/employee
Average annual income/employee

Form BOSTCTD-HMN

{Ieswed wnder Circufar No,

SY L TT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
af the Krare Bank of Fiedaam )

Jnzz2ms 317122014
VND VIND

334,550,243,535  357,314,966,388
206.560,690.117 6599242031290

4295032212211 2,069,023 413,241

5,036,143, 145863  3,125,580.410,959

015 1004
VND YND

1.653 1.663

190,83 1,837,929  161,902.662.222
11,474,995,599 [0, B44,627.453

207,306,833,528 172,747 .289.675

118,470,561 97,355,780
125412482 103.876.903
fa
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Vietmam Asia Commercial Joind Slock Bank Form BUSTOTI-HMN

JdA - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {laxwed wder Clrcndar No
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoei, ¥Yieinam SE20L4TT-NHNN dated 31 Decamber 2014
Nates 1o the consalidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2005 (continmed) af the State Bank of Vietnam)

37. Obligations to the State Treasury

Year ended 3171272015
Movements during the vear
Incourred / (Pand)/
Opening halance {deductible) dleducied Closing balance
YN VND Y YN}
Input value added tax (4.233.806,031) (8,722,522 696) 12,289,650,169 (666,6T8,558)
Chitpurt value added fax THO 896 852 5727T671.355 (5,497, 710,384) 1.016,857 823
Persoml income tax 691,350,938 2,493 058,202 (6.312,265,240) 872,143,900
Corpomte income tax 4, 169902 611 33.362,702,713 (9, 744, 805, 801 ) 27. 787,798,523
Withbelding tax 372,189 228204 028 (226,997 283) 2 668 934
1 A13,THe259 37089203602 (9.492 129,539) 29.012.790,622
Year ended 31122014
Movemenis during the year
Incurred ! i Paid )
Opening balance (deductible) deducted Closing balance
YND VMDD YD YN
Input value added tax (9,968,293} (14,097 .713,573) 9873 875837 (4,233 806,031
Owutput value added tax 686,236,624 2.131.266,112 (2,030,605 884) 786,896,852
Personal income tax 339,463,384 4,520,580, 10D (4,788.691.540) 691,350,938
Corporate ingome tax 114,916,819 12,841,008 491 (8, 7T86,112,699) 4, 169,902,611
Withholding tax 1,182,315 714,061,371 (T13.871.497) 1,372,189
1.351,829 849 6,500 292 499 (6,445,405 TED) | 415,716,559
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
34A - 34B Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward esived wnder Clroufar No
Hai By Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam AR IO ITT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
Motes to the consolidated Tnancinl siatements for the of the State Bank of Vietaam)

vear entled 31 December 2005 (eontinaed )

Tvpe and value of collaterals received from customers

311272015 3122004
YND VND
Real estates 23.014,417,276,790 13,526,129,737,121
Shares and valuable papers 6397520 T0T.663 1,787, 241,163,885
Inventories 1.456,276.346, 865 869,196,236,796
Machinery and equipment T6HT398,595, 749  7.027,703,255.505
ithers 27 839.406,001,186 617,759 418,730

¥9.475.027.%28,253 23.8218,029.812.037

Ti
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTTCTD-HMN

A - MB Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward (issared wnder Clecrlar Ne
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Yictnam S ETE-NINN daed 31 December 2074

MNotes (o the consolidated financial stalenients for the vear ended 31 December 2005 (continued) af the Siate Bank of Vieinay

39, Contingent liabilities and commitments

12015 I/ 1272014
Contractusl Margin Contractual Contraciual Margin Contractual
valoe - gross deposiis value - net valwe - gross deposits value - net
VYND VND YNNI VYND VND VND
Letiers of credit 23,990,034,005 B94. 288,496  23,0095,745,509 28,892, 282,854 BO62.223. 786  20,830,059,068
{rher guarantees 307.935.212,792  251.389.518.760 55,545,694,032 126,755,357,5347 54362269463 72,393 088084

131.925.246,797 253,283 B07.256 THO641.43954] [535,647.6404001 62424493249 093223 147,152




Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BFSTCTD-HN
J4A - ME Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward ifssned umader Clrenior No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Victnam dR 20 TT-NHNN deted 37 Decenibar 2014

Notes (o the consolidated nsncial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2015 (oontinued) aif the State Bask of Vietnm)

40. Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments by geographical areas

As at M December 2015 Held-Tor-trading Investment Credit
Total loan balances Total deposit balances securitics securities commitments
YND VND VYND VND YND
Domestic 20552281 990409 29477 216,717,107 107,527,745.273 I L350 986,544 889 331,925,246,797
Az at 3 December 20014 Held-Tor-trading Investment Credit
Total loan balances Total deposit balances Eecurities seCuritics commitments
YN VND VMDY VNI¥ YD
Domestic 15,821,970,562.720  22,851,134,508,720 22,4503 70,885  11.577,125.831.965 1 55.647.640,401




41.

Vieinam Asia Commercial Jolnf Stock Bank

J4A - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trang District, Hanod, Yietnam

Motes to the consalidaied Mnancial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 {continued)

Significant transactions with related parties

Form BISTCTD-HN

(tssucd wnder Clrcwlar No,

A2 A TT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
wf tive Siare Hamk of Fietmem)

2015 2014
Transactions during the vear YND ¥ND
Viet Phuong Investment Groap Joint Stock Company
Deposits received 20K 4357712
Hoa Binh Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
Interest income from loans 19,565.452,223 -
Interest expense on deposits - 60,670
Members of the Board of Management
Interest expense on deposits 1, 20706 49,101,824
Kemuneralions 3064 276,667 2,395 448,980
Members of the Board of Supervisors
Interest expense on deposits 4810174 00 009 556
Eemunerations 86415151 650,671,741
Members of the Board of Directors
Interest expense on deposits 11,652,820 234,980,804
Salaries and allowances 9. 350,000,000 5.607.497.365

J/12IS 3171272014

Balances at the year-end VND VND

Receivablesi{pavables)
Viet Phuong Invesiment Group Joint Stock Company
Deposits (1.437.194) (10,703,478}
Hoa Binh Investiment and Development Joint Stock Company
Deposits {196, 5594 (6.777.,210)
Loans 298, 000, 000, 000 .
Party Committee Office of Ho Chi Minh City
Deposils (11,713,794 (11,488 GRT)
Members of the Board of Management
Deposits {31,815,159) (1.215.844,829)

Wiem bers of the Board of Supervisors
Deposits (1,944, 164.621)

Members of the Board of Directors

Deposits (5,788,242 065)

(1. 183,742,713)

(3,978 664 816)

Td



Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Siock Bank Form BSTCTD-HN
JdA - HMB Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward flasuea avder Circwlar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam JU PO ATT-NHNN dated 31 Decomber 2014
Motes 1o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued) of the Siate Bank of Vietnam)

42, Segment reporting

fa)  Primary segment reporting

The Group's pnimary segment information by geographical segment is as follows:

For the vear ended 31 December 20015

The Northern The Central The Sonthern
Region Region Region Adjustments Total
YD VND YND VND YMD

I. Income
1. Interest income

External infevest income 1,970.633,152 857 354 .052,358,667 546,488,042, 998 - 2.871.174,154,522

Interiald interest income 2097 BTG T3, 712 454 936,997 070 1. 313,162 964,846 (3, 905.976,693,.584) -
2. Fee and commission income/{expenses) (8. 14 1,466,074) EB2. 342 740 3,217.369,587 - {4,021,753.747)
3. Other income (234, 144,226,681 5. 343,337,188 13,907 490,413 - (214,893 399,080
IL Expenses
|. Interest expenses

Exiernal interes! expenses (63B,077,67T5,722)  (349.501,101,112) (7T81,216,258,512) - (1,768, 795035 360)

fntermal inferest expenses (2,777,382, 405,769 (329 564.964,602) (799.029.323 713} 1,005 976 693 584 .
2. Depreciation of fixed assels (25.460.916,618) (2,854, 270,978) (2.802.627.176) - (31.126.814,772)
3. Operating expenscs (205309920962  (61,034,749.687) (141 405020.820) . (407,749 691 478)
Operating profit before allowance
expenses for eredit lnsses 171,842, 806,669 112,259.949.242 152343, 238,004 - 436,445,994,005
Allowance expenses for credit losses (241,252,181,736)  (21,405.254,319) (5%,459.112,55K) - {321,116,648,613)
Seoment results before tax (69,401 375,067 00, 554.694,923 931 RE4.025,536 . 115329 345392
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Vietnam Asia Commereial Jodnl Stock Bank

A - MB Han Thuyen, Pham inh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung [strict, Hanol, Vietnam

Motes to the conselidated fMinancial statements for the year eaded 31 December 2005 (eontinued)

Form BRSTCTD-HM
Flnsned wader Circufar Yo,

SA2OFLTT-NHNN dhated 31 Degembgr 2004

eol i Srade Bank of Vielnam)
As at 31 December 2015
The Morithern The Central The Sounthern
Region Region Region Adjustments Total
VD YND VNI WND YND
Asseix
Cash on hand, gold 216312 881,615 45,418,841 850 721.818,520,050 134,550,243 535
Fixed assets 191,763 146,632 16, 498,002.617 50,280.524.013 278.5d41.673,262
(ther asscts 20,558, 749,594,709  6,192.941.265.775  14.511.395.876.814 41.265,086,737,298
200966,825,622.976 6274858110242  14,636.494.920,877 41, 878,178,654 095
Linbilities

Extermul Liabilifies
Internal liabilites
Other hiahilities

16,992,701, 789,614
19175449719
232011, 724,015

6,056,806,551,127

132,196.012.510

14,290.263,853.573
15,655,765
235449585514

17339.772,194.314
19.191.105.484
599.657322.039

17,243 888,963,348

6.189.002.563.637

14.525,729,094,852

37958620621 837
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Vietnaum Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

A - MB Han Thuyen, Plam Dink He Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Victnam

Motes to the consolidated Minancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 (eomtinoed)

Form BOSTTCTD-HN
{femred weder Clrewlor No,

AW L TTNHNN dited 31 December 2004

1. Income
1. Imteresi income
Lixternafl inferest imcome
Internal tnferest income
=- Fee and commission income/Nexpenses)

1. Oiher income

1. Expenses
1. Inferest expenses
External inlevest expenses
ntermal imtercst expenses
2. Depreciation of fixed asscis
3. Operating expenses
Operating profiviloss) before allowance
expenses for credil losses
Allowance expenses For credit losses
Segment results before tax

of the State Bark of Vietnam )

For the year ended 31 December 2014

The Northern
Region
VNI

1,208,237 538,661

The Ceniral
Region
YD

118,700,580.024

The Southern

Region
VD

215,056,855.851

Total
VND

Adjustmenis
YD

1.841,994,974,536

1,246,744, 731,222 386568151175 B85200,646,533  (2.518.612.528.930) .
(2.512,465,587) 1,227,110.971 3.788.142.459 ; 2,502, 787843
128,544,495,677 3.612,058.311 7.618.079,193 . 139,774.633.181
(426,288,776,675)  (296,778,402,510)  (720,146,870,340) - {1,443.214,049,525)
(1,706,750,793,569)  (132.088.234,384)  (679.773.500.977) 2.518.612.528.930 :
(25.386,082.577)  (2.174.166.903) (2.936.523,203) - (30,496.772,683)
(136,208,039.908)  (54.828911,511)  (126,119,538.981) s (317,156.490,400)
225387061878 24238185173 (117.213.709,465) = 132,411,537.586
(59,903,847,746) (729.304,900)  (11,440,243,123) - (72,073,305,769)
165,483,214,132 23,508890,273  (125,653,952,588) = 60,338,141,817
17

= Ly
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTOCTD-HM

A - MB Han Thayen, Plam Dink Ho Ward {ixxned wealer Circulfar No.
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vicinam S ETT-NHUNN daied 31 December 2014
Modes (o e consolidated fnanckal statements for the vear ended 51 December 2005 (continued) of the State Bank of Vietnam}
As at 31 December 2014
The Northern The Central The Southern
Region Region Region Adjustments Total
VND YD VMD VD VNI
Assets
Cash on hand, gold 246,244.174,603 52,702, 386,049 50368 405,736 357,314 966,388
Fixed assets 155.976.096,107 22 585,408 282 50,048, 060,587 228.609.564.976
Cither assets 17891884642, 710 5021462273307 12,091.220574,179 15,004,587 890, 196
18,294, 104,913,420 5096, 770,067.638 12,199,637 440,502 35.590,512.421.560
Liahilities

External labilities
Internal liabilitics
Uither lenbilities

14.433,008,152,077
18,724,13 1,490
104,394,934,517

4.969. 320,003 259
64, 480,000
Tl 468.811.478

12,135,787 482,172
15,655,765
191,771,551.437

31,538,115.637.508
I 8,804 267,255
397.635297.432

14,556,127,218,084

3070 853,294,737

12,327,574,689,374

31,954, 555 202,195
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

A - MB Han Thayen, Fham Dok Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District,; Hanoi, Vietnam

Mt o the consolidated Onancial stafements for the vear ended 30 December 2005 (continmed )

Form BISTCTD-HN
{lasned wnder Cireular N,

SWINETT-NHNN dated 31 Decenber 2014
af the Siare Bank of Viewmaw

(b)  Secondary segment reporting

The Group's principal activities are to carry out commercial banking, mvestment, and debts and assels management activities.

Commercial banking Debits aml assets

As at 11 December 2015 activities Investment activithes mansgement activities Unalloeated activities Tutal
VNI YND YMND YT VD

Assets 31,298,800,605,522 B.967,.689,779,539 492.035,662.120 1119652606914 41.878, 178,654,095
Liabilities 29,300,584, (066,698 B.632,036,555.13%9 - . 37958620621 837
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Income 2,192 907 668,743 TRO.099 453,325 BT 456,374,365 78,611,849,996 3,148,075 346,429
Expenses (Z,108,043,776,655) (476,544, 770,250) (9,280,947 882) (438,876.506.250) {3,032, T46,001,037)
Profitfloss) before tax 84, 863 892 088 312,554,683.075 TB175.426,483 [(360,264,656,254) 115,329,345,392

Commercial banking Debits and assets

As at 1] December 2004 activities Investment activities management activities Unallocated activities
VIND VND YND VND

Assels 20,630,213,441,126 13,119,502,726,775 491, B8 596,876 1.348,907.656.783
Liabilities 30,904.,990.421,705 - 5,.502,843,772 44.06]1.936.718
For the vear ended 31 December 2014

Ineome 1.568912,518.877 617,356,694,222 4,880,323 483 123.029.130,746
Expenses (1.800,5346,427.288) (L0, 749,520,963) 2,173,764,18%) (349 570,813,071)
Profitiloss) before tax (231,433.908411) 515,607,173,259 2,7046,559.294 (226.541,682,325)

Tuial
YN

35.590,512,421,560
31.954,555,202,195

2,314,178,667,328
2,253,840,525.511)
60,338,141 817

™
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(a)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Siock Bank Form BSTCTD-HM
34A - 4B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward flvrwedd werdler Circular No
Hai Fia Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam SR TTNHNN dated 31 December 2014
Notes to the consolidated Mnancial stalements for the of the Seate Bank of Vietram)

vear ended 21 December 2005 (continued )

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The banking business is always involved in risks, the risk assessment and management depend on the
Group's risk appetite and risk assessment and control processes.

he Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

& credit risk:
*  liquidity risk; and

*  market risk.

This note presents information about the Group's exposure 1o each of the above risks and description
about the Group®s ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

The organisational structure of risk management of the Group is as below:

*  The Board of Management is responsible for approving, controlling how the Board of Directors
implement the risk management strategies and policies, establishing and operating the nisk
management system in order (o ensure the significant risks are within the nsk limits;

®  The Group establishes, regulates the structure and activities of the Risk Management Committee
(“BMC™). The RMC is responsible for:

- Consulting the Board of Management in issuing procedures and policies under the authority
relating to risk management in banking activities as stipulated by laws and the Bank’s charter;

- Analysing and provide warnings on the Group’s safety level regarding potential risks and
short-terim a5 well as long-term preventing measures,

- Reviewing and evaluate the appropristeness and effectiveness of the Group’s current risk
management palicies and procedures in order 10 recommend and propose 10 the Board of
Management on requirements 1o change to existing procedures and policies as well as the
cperational strategies; and

= Reporting to the Board of Management and meet on a regular basis or adhoc basis but at least
pnce every i months,

=  The Bank's Board of Supervisors is responsible for the internal audit activities of risk management
syslem:

o

F &
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(b)

Vielnam Asin Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HMN
J4A - HB Han Thaven, Plam Dink Ho Ward fsrwed wnder Cirowlar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung Disirlct. Hanel, Yiemam JWIOTETT-NHNN dared 3T Decembar 3014
Motes to the consolidated finnncial statements for the of the Stare Bank of Vietram)

yvear ended 31 December 2005 (contimed)

*  Risk measurement and reporting system:

- The Group’s risks are measured by the methods of reflecting the measurable losses and
forecasting the unmeasurable losses by the models and statistics;

- The risk managing and monitoring are primarily based on the limits set by the SBY and in
comphliance with the safety regulations of the SBY. These limits reflect the Group™s business
strategies, business environment and the risk accepiance limits;

= Informatsen from operating activities is examined and processed in arder to identify risks early,
as well as repont 10 the Board of Management and the Board of Directors for decision making
on a imely basis. Information includes credit limits, industry limits, valoe at nsk (Var), safety
ratios in liguidity and the guantified market risks, On that basis, the management decides
necessary provisions and enderstand 1o handle the Group®s significant risks,

=  Risk concentration: The concentration level in operating activities represents the sensitivity of the
Group™s risks to the development of an industry or a particolar group of clients, the Group has
initintive to diversity the risks by setting limits in all sectors, industries. groups of clients and
investrment aclivities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if & customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Credit risk arises mainly from lending activities and investment activities involving investment in debt
securities, The Group manages and controds credit risk by setting risk limits, risk appetite for each
counterparty. The Group meets the SBY 's regulations including establishing credit risk management
procedures, as well as credit limits, portfolio for credit products, collaterals; rype of customers,
geographical areas and buesiness sectors that are allowed to grant credit or limit credit. By monitoring
status of these credit limits, the Group can assess the potential risks and be able 1o handle risks on a
timely basis.

In addition, the Group has also implemented the methods of measuring and assessing the client’s
repayment capacity with advanced criteria including initial assessment of the most important criteria
effecting the repayment capacity and evaluation framework method in order 1o determine each client’s
probability of defauh, and therefiore the Group can determine the loan expense for each client and assist
in debt management throngh carly waming,

The Group has established the process of credit quality review in order to early identify the possible
changes in client’s repayment capacity, The limits for each client are set through the credit risk
classification system in accordance with the SBV's regulations. Accordingly, the system classifies
credit nsk level for each client. The risk ¢lassification 13 reviewed quarterly. The credit quality review
process allows the Group 1o assess the potential losses and then take proper actions on a timely basis.

81

i & _____-\..I T
Jrfg}" i PR

- == ¥ T



Vietnam Asia Commercisl Joint Stock Bank

J4A - 3B Han Thuyen, Fham Dok Ho Ward

Hi Ba Trung District, Hamoi, Yietnam

Motes to the consolidated financinl statements for the
vear ended 31 December 2015 (continaed)

Coflaterals

Form BOSTCTD-HN

flesued wrder Circular No,
SR ETT-NHNYN dated 31 Decembar 2004
il Hivet Sente Bawrk o Vietnanm)

The Group has issuwed guidelines on the acceptance of tvpes of collateral and valuation parameters. The
main tvpes of collateral obtained are real estates, inventories. machinery and equipment, shares and
villuable papers. The Board of Directors monitors the market value of collaterals, requests additional
collaterals in accordance with the underlying agreement, and reviews the market value of collaterals
obfained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for loans and advances to customers.

Corrmitments and paaraniees

To meet the financial demands of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments
and contingent liabilities. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the balance sheet,

they do contain credit risk and are therefore part of the averall risk of the Group.

Concenfration of credit risk

The Group's concentration of risk is managed by clients, by geographical area and by business sector.

Not considering collaterals, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date are as

follows:

Loans and receivables

Balances with the 5BV

Deposits with and loans 1o other credit institutions (i)
Loans and advances to customers - gross {ii)
Purchased debis

Accrued interest and fees receivable

Cither receivables

Available-for-sale linancial assets
Available-for-sale debt securities (iii)

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturily securities - gross (i)

Off-halance sheet commitments
Letters of credit

Other guarantees

3122015
VNI

S0, 560,600,117
4,379,602, 212,211
20,267.711,996.409
318.991,877.497
1.005,872,361,055
1,643 366,588,613

3122014
VNI

600,242 031,290
2.069.023.413,281
15, 821.970,562, T3

2,228, 764,004,842
1,761,914, 183,746

30,042,105,725,902 22 580,914,255 888
£,520,914,155.130  10,069,408,726,385
2,699,949,989,750  1,448,794,705,580

23.990,034,005 28,892.282.854
307,935,212.792 126,755.357.547
331,925.246.797 155,647.640,401
41,555.809.031,598  34.254.765.328.254
82
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i)

(i)

(i)

Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

A - 3B Hae Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trang Disirici, Hanoi, Vieinam

Maotes to the comsolidated Nuancial slatemenis for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Depaosits with and loans to other credit institutions

Form BOSTCTD-HN

{losmed urler Cirgular No,
S92 TI-NHNN dated 3] December 2014
of the Stave Bank of Fieham)

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions of the Group are mainly held with well-known credit
institutions. The Board of Directors does not foresee any significant credit risk from these deposits
and does not expect that these credit institutions may default and cause kosses to the Group.

Lovans coned adviaices (o Cusiemers

Loans and advances to customers thal are neither past due nor impaired are mostly from customers

with good pavment records with the Group,

Available-for-sale debt xecurities and held-to-maturity securities

The Board of Directors does not foresee any significant credit risk from these securities and does not
expect that the issuers may default and ¢ause losses o the Group.

An analvsis of collateral against financial assets as at the reporting dates are as follows:

Asat 31 December 2005 Secuned

VND

Loans and receivables

Balances with the SBY =
Deposits with and loans o other

credit institutions -
Loans and advances to customers -

ErOss 19,668,173, 149,348
Purchased debis 38,991 877,497
Accrued mierest and fees receivable 1,963,571,524.997
Diher receivables 366.900,201,132

L nsecured
VMDD
506,560 6%, 117
4.579.602.212,.211
599 538,847,061

142300 836,058
1.276.430. 728 988

Total
VND

506.560.690,117
4,579.602,212211
20,267,711,996,409
IB.991 877 497

3005872361055
1.643.366.588,613

22037646, 752.074 B.OD4.454. 764,435 30,042, 105,725,902
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale debt securities = BA20.914.155,139  8.520914,155,139
Held-to-maturty investments
Held-to-maturity securities - gross = 2699049080 750  2.60994% 989 750
22.037.646,752.974  19.225.323.117.817 41,262,969.870,79]
B3
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Yietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

F4A - 248 Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnaim

Motes to the consalidated financial statements for the
vear ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

As at 31 December 2004 Secured

VM

Loans and receivables

Balances with the SBY -
Deposits with and loans to other

credit institutions -
Loans and advances to customers -

LAY 14,299,363,969 633
Mccrued interest and fees recervahle x
Crther receivahles -

14,299.463,969,633

Available-Tor-sale financial asscts
Available-for-sale debt sccuritics

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity securitics - gross 1,448,794, 705,580

Form BOSTCTD-HMN

flssaved wnder Circinfar Vi,
SWNNILTT-NHNEN dared T December 2014
of the Srate Bank of Vietnam)

Lnsecuread
VNI
G0, 242,031,290
2069023413281
1,522, 506,593,080

2.298.764,064,842
1,761,729.231,144

Total
YND

609.242.031,290
2,069,023 413,281
15,821,970,562,729

2,228,764 064 842
1,761,729.231,144

B.281,377.363,450

10,069,408,726, 385

22,580,729,303.1R6

10,065,408, 726,385

1,448,794, 705,580

[SSC e

15,748,258,675,213

18,350,786,089 835

34,008,932,735,251

An aging analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired at the reporting date is as

follows:

Loans and advances to customers
Held-to-maturily securities

31122015
VYND

B59,131,559,330

322014
VND

4,196.149.967.970
2010,000,000,000

839,131.039,330

4,396,149 967,970
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTINHM
JA - HEB Han Thaven, Pham Foh Ho Ward {Ixsaed umaler Cirenlor Nio
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Yietnam FU20I4TT-NHNN dated 31 Diecenber 2014
Nates o tle consoliduted financinl statements for the year ended 3 December 2005 (contimued)) o the Siaie Bk of Viernam)

An aging analysis of impaired financial assets is as follows:

As al 31 December 2005 Overdue up io Overdue from 91 o0 Overdue from 181 (0 Overdue over 360
W) days 180 days 360 davs days Total
VD VND VND VND ¥ND
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to customers - gross | 1,587,020,056 213,323,283 - 174,944 928 371 186,745 271,710
As at 31 December 2014 Overdue up to Overduoe from 1 to Overdue from 181 (0 Overdue over 360
9 days 180 days ol days days Tuotal
VND VND VND VND VND

Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to customers - gross 173,914,336,593 26,284, 720.Ta 1 01,196, 817,507 216,312, 763,017 S07,T08.637,06%8

Refer 1 Note 38 for the type and value of collatérals received from customers. The Group has not determined the fair value of collaterals for past due
and impaired financial assets because information about their market prices is not available and there is currently no guidance on determination of fair
varlue using valuation techniques under Victnamese Accounting Standards or the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the
State Bank of Vietnam. The fair values of these collaterals may differ from their carrying amounts.

BS
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTO-HN
MA - 34B Han Thuven, Pham Dinh Ho Ward sswed wnder Circular No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam ST L TT-MHNN dited 31 December 2004
Notes to the consolidated fimancial statements for the of ihe State Bank of Vieteamj

year ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its finangial obligations as they fall
due, or the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due but suffer major loss to
perform such obligations.

Murmagement of fguidity rivk

To limit the risk, in addition to the Group’s basic capital, the Board of Directors has prepared o
diversified funds beside deposits, managed the assets in the relation with Liquidity, monitored the future
cash flows together with the availability of high quality collaterals, which would be the additional funds
when necessary,

The Group maintains the portfolio of assets, valuable papers with diversitv and high liquidity and are
able 1o liquidate casily in case the cash flows are unexpectedly interrupted.  The Group also has credit
commitments to meel the liquidity requirements. In addition, the Group maintains the compulsory
reserves at the SBY, The important thing is that the Group maintains the limit between net liguidity
assets and payables when are affected by the market conditions,

The liquidity scenario are made weekly with the before-maturity withdrawal scenario, unrenewed
deposits from other credit institutions, while maintaining the safety.

Thve liguidity ravies according o the regalations of the SBY

The Grouwp maintains a minimum matio equal to 10% of highly liquid assets 1o total lisbilities.,

A minimum ratio equals 1o 50% and 10% between the highly liquid assets and the net cash flows being
due within the next 30 days for VND and foreign currencies (including USD and other foreign
currencies converted into USD using interbank exchange rate of the SBV or using exchange rate of the
Group if interbank exchange rate of the SBY is not available),

Analyvis of assets and Nabilities by remaining contractual maturity

The following table presents an analysis of assets and liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date 10 maturity date.  The actual maturity
of assets or liabilities may differ from contractual terms based on addenda 1o the contracts if any.

B

*



Vietmam Asia Commereial Joini Stock Bank
MA - MB Han Thuyen, Fham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Motes (o the consolidaied financial statemenis for the vear ended 31 December 20015 (continued}

Form BOSTCTD-HMN
flssred under Cirenlar No,
A2 ATT-NHNN dared 31 December 2014

o fine Siate Bank of Vietnam)
(rverdus up to
A manths
Overdue over  [including overdse U tw Fromaover [ o3  Fremover 3to 12 From over § (o §
Ay ai 3 December 2015 3 months bess than 10 days) | month mnths mnihs years Over 5 vears Tutal
VN LT VNI WD WD YN VD VND
Aty
Cash on hand, gold and pemstones - 334, 550.243,535 . - - - AN 550,243,555
Babances with the S0Y a - S, 306 1T . 2 . - S0, Sl G 1| 7
Deposids with and Fams W ather
credit instimitivns - = FaHE0322022011 B M B, R 2B, ST D0, DD - = AATHO02.212.201
Held-lar-irding secunties - grass - - 07527, 745.273 - - - - 107,437, 745,273
L nnns and mdvamces in oustismens
- prosE E7RATH IR A0  IAT L AHEAT] 1,363, 743,127 40t L 18, 206,91 ZAZLEIE T ART A T19300, 043 112 RAOT. TEGSON 200 20267, 711,959,409
Parchased dobls IR0 BTTAGT - - - - = = 38,991 877 407
Irvestment securitics = pross = TSR, 156, 149 T A2 BTH A 2T, A0MRG9T K TTHTIN RN IHE 148 511,024 66 11 351 986 544 KHY
Capiial conmibution, Fomg-temm
invesiments - - - . - JE5.653, 22 400 315,653,224 400
Foed asseis - - - - - 2TH 541,671,262 2TH 541,678 M2
Crlier pssets = - 14415, 19K pA3 ¥I17,392 4%4 Jaosdauden 560 1LI12042.917, 142 160 08003 L6233 877, TH2, 701
Tuotnd assets (1) TITAGH 087906 16T ADDGI063] 6 TIZAILITIALY 10010568291 T 30G02.264.455 155100083,358,726 9540007, T2LETI  42.405.003,550,204
Linteilities
Diepsils aml boerowings from
oiher eredit insicugions = = 0T 460 160 URG 2 430,951 IR0L0H) A0, TR 0 00 225 THNL D 139,356,037 12,865,060, 797,324
Diepaorsls from cuklonmers - = TAMISZIS M0 4957684300134 |DHSH 495 9T 44T 1274716, 47 1. 56T el 573 5000 24 79, T KT, 408
Extrusied funds regeived - - - . 422 K (K] 25,71 2300000 - 2, | 34, 500,000
Wabuable papers issood - - 2 270 MK 6,207, (26,50 - - - BATT, 126,50
Ciher Bnbikities - - 8,914,503, 754 12,932,833, 765 - = G848 427,523
Total lalilities {2} - = ITITARIBATGAZD 000442 38580 11 376.626813.206 | 30 454 071 267 204,079,837 37058 620,621 837
Pt Nquidity gap (31 = (1) - (2)] 1T A6RD87.006 167400620631 (10,566 482003, 415) (S600431,762,007) (4.237.024,548,761) 14307629282, 190 954881309200 4 446383 368 457
7
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HMN

A - 4B Han Thayen, Pham Diah Ho Ward {Issued wnder Circufar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung Dstrict, Hanol, Vietnam dX A TT-NHNN dared 31 December 20704
Motes to the consalidated financial statements Tor the yeor ended 31 December 2015 (continued of the State Bank of Vietham)
Orverdue up tn
3 monihs
Ohverdue over  (including overdoe Lip ti From over | to 3 Fram over 3 Lo From over 1 e 5
As at 51 December 2004 3 months less tham 10 days) | meanth minnths 12 mantfis FEAFS (hver 5 vears Tatul
L] VN VNI WAL VNI VLN VD VaD
Asseis
Lash on hand, gokd ond zemaones - JET 304,900 S EH - - - F5T7,114, M THE
Balunces with the SHY - - HU5 242 03 | 250 - - - Gl 24T 5 | 290
Depagils with s liaans 1o oiber
chadin inslitaipas - = TS24 13,281 - - . = 2.069,027.413.281
Held=lor=triding socuHines - pross - - I3 AZDITOHRS - - - - 22450370 ARS
|.nans and sdvances to cusiomers -
fiishtd JOT OO 240,705 43358633658, 223 3, 375050,8340, 765 S04 316,520, 160 JTRGIX055.754  2.726,062,065249 3042 550 SHA THY  |582) 900 562, TI0
Invesbmenl secarilics - g 200 AL KHE AHE]) - [CUEEENIEETC I BITHRODSITERIA LIS 056600 T 458 E2.A09 10 B2 ML 10 5T 25 850,904
Chther long-serm inveximenis = = - = . S1R927 M2 500 SERS27 M, ’O0
Fined assets - - - - - 228,604,504 976 228,609 564 976
THher assacts - - - ASS25010,THY, 195 - - H552.500,TH, 196
Total assets {1 SHTUS 240,715 4335803, 365223 061308101 2,060%  S5TT4052.686.27T0  IO00L02Z83521,T14  DLIRSHS4, TS4440 4. T0NEESIENT IS 4T I TARMLS1IN
Liabilities
Borrowings fram ihe SAY - - - 105 436,812,200 - - 105 436,812,256
Deposits and borroavings from
oither credit instiuEns Z = QOMEAGT TTSOME X SRT S04 TN, KN PRI R TR ]] 15,221 AHB 0 135255 494 11 AM50] 251 52K
Dreposits from ustomers - LA3E G0 A60 58 1OS0T, 183,946,076 T 1049835 002, |88 SET63603.043 - 1R TN TR A0
Fntrustedd uskls recsived - - = - - 124831 250 4KH 1243 | 250000k
Ciher lishililies = a 4 16349 Sl ART = = = 16410 564 687
Tidal linbilities {1] . = 1026 1LEERGASGIY  136200654.543.953  T.L06S 18,12, 188 LRG0 12, 566,506,498 31,954, 555.202,195
Put [aguidcdicy gap [(3) =(1p—42)] S67.995240,7158 4335863365223 (3,658,147 .025,000) (7,846,021 857.683) (3,506, 7005794745 D243, 268,140,497 4, TA6AS2 346,041 e R e ]
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Vietnam Aszla Commercinl Jolnt Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
34A - 34B Han Thayen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {ssued wnder Circular Mo
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam AWV LTT-NHNN daded 31 December 2004
Motes to the consolidated Onancial statements for the of the State Bavik of Vietam)

viar ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that incurs due 1o adverse fluctuations in interest mtes, foreign exchange rites
and market prices.  Market risk includes interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and price nsk
will affect the Group’s results of eperations or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is 10 manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
risk parameters, while optimising the return.

Muanagement of market risk

Market Risk Management Division in the Bank’s Risk Management Department controls the market
risk by establishing and managing the business limits, loss stop limits and analysing the risk of
investment portfolio including interest rate risk and price risk in order to report to the Board of
Directors on a timely basis.

lnterest rate risk

Imterest rate risk is the risk of adverse fluctuations in mierest rates when the Group has;
*  Timing difference in new interest rates setting:

*  Changes in relationships of interest rates of different finencial instruments with the same
maturities;

= Changes in interest rates with different maturities; and
*  [Effect of products with options relsting to interest rales.

The Group will be subject to the interest rate risk duc to mismatches or differences between the maturity
dute and repricing date of assets, liabilities and off-balance shest commitments in a certain period. The
Group manages this risk through balancing the repricing date of assets and liahilities by optimising the
terms of assets in the portfolio {see the below analysis of interest rate risk). The Group also periodically
calculates and determines the gap between average interest rates input and output in order o estimate
the business eMectiveness and then adjust the mterest rates accordingly.

The following table shows the assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing

date or maturity date at the reporting date. The expected repricing and maturity dates may difTer
significantly from contractual dates particularky with regard to the maturity of cusiomers” deposits,

E9



Vietnam Asia Commercial Joinl Stock Bank

A - MHB Han Thoyen, Pham Dink Hoe YWard

Hai Ba Trung Dstrict, Hanei, Vieinam

Motes (o the conmolidated Nnancial statements for the yvear ended 3 December 2005 {eonbinwed )

Form BOSTCTD-HN
(Fevaed umder Clrcalar Ne

SR LTT-NHNN dated 3 Degenbier 24004
of the State Bank of Vietram)

Overibue (fncluding
loansy nverdise of Ui From aver | 1w § Frmm aver 3 in Frum nver & tn From over | her
Ay al 3] December SRS less than 1 days)  Free of interest I momth mumths s mnmt s 12 manths & years & vears Toial
VI Vil L1 VNI VD VN VND VD
A untdn
Cish o band, pold amd
Prmslnes = 334, 550,240,535 - - - - - 33550241 535
Blabamees wilh the S0 . . S0nSH0.690 117 - - - - S SEOENO LT
Digppaszis wilh and lodes in
ather eredit ingstilugions - - XAM0E2.212.21) e, () (RO R JRA 50N LN = P el e e
Heekl-for-irading wecurilies - gross = HNAITT43ITA - - . . . . 107537, 743,273
Laans and adhaesoes i
EUEIOTIrS = Prias 1S BTG R M = L HFATT S5 GSR GZIAOGRE AR SIS 5 Tl 4T B HAR . TedD, b T, 192 3EER G0 TAS el dRT.TIZ 20267711 00 400
Prrchargd debis SR AT AN - - . . . - - EHE I
Irvesimend securities - gross = LRGN0 58,023 51,534, 000,8Th TSR E RELAKTNIZAST  I6A.TEZIGAIH2 6,224,300 423 704 11,351 SHE 544 HEY
Capital contribution,
long-tonm investnents . 115 653,224,400 - - - - . J54A53. 224 4K
Fined maseis = ITRS41673 262 - - - - TS LATI 262
iHler pssets = JAIIFRTIT 00 - AR 63535 . . - = A AIRATTVEL T
Tatal nssets {1} 1BR HGR TR 51T TRIGD 11, TEER5 7900 054 B6T 62 RS0GTUHRAEITT 6091 98, TTEIS L0256 156,23 GIXRIATREAGH  TSEOGOAAT.TIE 4240800190 204
Linhiblities
[heparsais ad borrowirgs
from egher ceedit Insidutions - IXS20ATEOED DAL SR TEIDME  2A30.951 2RO 2EA 50, N0 D) I, 0, ) ) 2 S M), M) T30356337 12865360797 326
[hepasits rmm custiomers - = TAMIMHZISEHF 4957 368A30,134  A63L536,621 327  6231SEIISEENY 1274716571567 BTSN 24,439 TELRTO4HSE
Entrusied funds recened - - - - . S22, W0, (K] 25,712,500, 600 - M, 34, 500,000
Valuabde: papers iazsod - 22T B, (M G, 20T (2 MM . - - RATT, 02650
iOnhr liainbes = 65915591754 = & 12542 %33 THU n . GIE. B4R 437 523
Tetal linhilities (21 - SIGEISATLTMI  16SSTHTLNTRMN  TRO4A26.TI0AN4 4919090621327 6ASTSH,191 8D 1302454071567 TMO2A3T  37,058,620,621 8537
Imberest semsitivity gap
uff halance l';ﬂl ems [OEd HER, TOH,517  OEROITSTHEIIG  (RBGLODEI290THy 1112263671548 1, 272 854,150,080 (2402420 035655) 4925730751 831 TSASREASTHTS 4 ddh 80 LGH 47
b= E0h 12}
Imterest semsitiviny gup af
off-halamce sheet ivens (4] % T = = 3 & ) )
Total Interest sencilviy 1 anas68,700,537 SAN0TETHAI 16 (NO610IR12907H)  LII2IGLETISAS | ITEABAISHIRE (LAIZA IS 655) ASISTIITSLANE  TSLASGASTATS 4446380 368450

Rup J5) = (3R]

99



Vietmaum Asin Cemmercial Joint Stock Bank

JdA - 34B Han Thuyen, Pham Dink Hao
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Victnam

Ward
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Form BOSTCTINHN
flasned wnder Cirenlor Mo,

49204 TT-NHNN dajed 3T December 2014
of the Stare Bank ef Viennaimi)

Urerdug Jine lwiling
Ionams inverdue of Up i Framuver 1 gs 3 Fram wver § o From aver e From aver 1 1 ver
As mt M December 2004 less tham [0 days)  Free af inberes I mnmth msunihs i manibs 12 momths 5 yeurs 5 vears Tudul
VD WL VN VN Rl VR Vi VD VA
Al
Cash o b, godid and
pemnsiones = A57 714, %0 3KE . = B . . . A57 514, 1heh IER
Balmmces with the SEY - - BRI 42 (] 35K - - - - - EARR P AN ] 2K}
Dheposiis with and kens o
aitvet erdin Instchns - = B 0ER403.280 - - - - - 20EA2340 3281
Helil=frr-iradimg secarifics - gross - IS0, RES = - = = - - 22450570 885
Loans and sdvances &
CLEOIMATS » ETosE ALTDE ESERDE VAR - | AGS, T06036, 734 2,209, |§2981. 778 297 259160630 T, BEE U631, TEG 649 - = 15EZ] 970,562,719
brvestmenl secunins: -
Eriss 200 0000 | RaT, 15, 165,580 [[EAREL AR R GITRISITIRIG 1345279217023 LVEA 236 149937 G400.087 W61 - 11577025830, 065
Capitall comiribmiin,
lomp-erm Envestmens - S1K.827. 302 800 - - = = 5 SIR.S2T S0 RO
Fixed assts - FERGLEL 56, 0T - - - - - . 2B o= Sl WTh
LS HTCTE B - 4RA7 A9, T, 4 - - - - - - 4552 410,70, 96
Toeal asseis (1) AR HSRGIAUEE  6,THT AN, IMEEES 4085571 471,305 I000, A 5T 597 10 SIRATRASE  MOIE AR MG SEG 600 09T SR = SREAT. 174500
Liaditiakes
Bormowings frmm ke SHY - . 19,436 R 12200 . - - - LR i |
Dpossits mil bommowings from
ther credil sl iors - = IR, 46T, TTS I 2 587 50 2 200NN 22439 256 448 - - = 1LA3RS0].25] 528
Dreposits fram sisiomears - - 1S A6 AN A8 10507 1830460076 4542, 107, I6,541 2367, 743 783,600 W17 388 A13 943 = TR A6 3T S
Entrusted Fands receved - a - P - - - 1 2 A1 250 L4325 D
Uahvor liabalikies - Al A0 564,647 - - - . L5419 564 687
Tonal lahilimies (1) = Abe AN AR 0ET 10260 AN GBS RIS 13204 20407 B0e 45650 ITRIS 3567, TES TAS 8T SIT 65603943 12450250000 31 954,555, 202,095
Interesi sensitivity gap =
wl balamoe shewt ilems AT HSH 005,008 G ATLEML S0 008 (S UTT ST L A08) (10,367, 2260621674 (222,009 306} B AS6 050,950 SARZTIINGUEGE (124D 50U 3RS G19.652315
[E¥i=a11 -2y
Interest semaitivity gap ol
off-bulance sheet jtems (4) z E = : 5 g = o %
Todal imtoresd sensiiivity 4 o0, 4oy coe o%g  6.371,090,536,138 (5927
ap [£55 = (3rH4]) . {SATTHST, 164,308 (MLB7. 226,62 16T4) (2022062, P M 3860 GG ASGAS50530 SANZTAZMGULGEE  (1EAN0. 250084 3 H92 E10.G3ENIS
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3dA - ME Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hai Ba Trung Dstrict, Hanei, Yictnam

Motes (o the conwlidated fnancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2003 (eontinwed)

Form BOSTCTI-HMN
{fevured wnder Clecilar Mo,

AL TT-NHNN duted 31 Devornber 201 4
-t.lf e Seate Bamk r.g.l" Figtnomi!

The following table shows the average effective annual interest rates of interest bearing financial instruments with different terms and currencies:

As at 31 December 2015 Up o Fromover 1 to Fromover3to  Fromover 60 From over 1 1o

Overdue I manth 3 months & months 12 months 5 vears (hver 5 vears
Assels
Deposits with and loans to other credit
institutions
5 YR N 4.70% 4680 N/A MNAA HiA A
* Foreign cumencics WA WA WA N/A |.75% WA MIA
Loans and advances fo cuslomers
= WND 17.41% 10.93% 12.36% I 1.12% 11.41% [ 2.42% L1 19%%
*  Forcign cumencics T.05% 5.50% 5.73% 4. 88% 3.215% 3.09%, MIA
e Gold T91% MIA WA MIA M/A 5.40%4 9.55%
Investment securitics
s WND MiA B.71% Q.61% B.80% I, B9, Q.1 6% MA
Liabilities
Deposits and borrowings from other
credit institutiors
. VNN Wi 4.90% 4.70%% 4. 70% MNIA MNiA g LY
*  Foreign cumencics N/A N/A NIA NIA MN/A NIA N/A
Deposils from coslomers MNA,
= YWD WA .30 5.500% 5.50% 6. 50 T 2% T.A0%
' Foreign cumencics MIA 0.00%% 0.15% 0.25% 0, 75% {1.75% N/A
Entristed funds recerved
" WHND A MiA N'A N/A MN/A MiA Hh.A8%
Valuable papers issued
= YWND A 54050 551% N/A MIA MWiA WA




Vietmam Asia Commercial Jodnt Stock Bank Form BESTCTD-HN
JdA - M0 Hon Theyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward (Ixsued umder Circalar No.
Hai Ba Trung District. Hanol, Vietnam LU20FLTT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014
Motes to the comsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 (continued) eaf v Suaaree Brank of Vietnam)
As at 31 December 2004 Up to Fromover 1 1o From over 3io  From over6to  From over 1 to

Overdue 1 month 2 months & mionihs 12 months S vears Over S vears
Assels
Depaosits with and loans (o other credit
instiutinns
s VND MrA .00 ™A M/A M/a, hiA MN/A
Loans and advances o customers
L 18.33% B.B4% T.60% 10.75% 12.27% BA M/A
*  Foreign curmencics £.01% MN/A MIA 4.55% o Do B/A WA
#Gold 8.50%% MiA M/A MNiA B.27% A MNA
Invesiment securitics
e YND | 7.00% 11.10% 10.0F%5 10,70 4 Ot 0.43% MIA
Liabilities

Deposits and borrowings from other
credit institutions

» VHD MNIA 3.74% 4.65% 6.00% MNIA N/A N/A
*  Foreign cumencies MN/A 0.87% M/A MIA MNIA WA N/A
Deposits from customers

» VHND NIA I 96% 9. 10% 9.68% 9.06% 9.63% N/A
*  Foreign currencies N'A 0.85% [.31% 1.47% |.26% [ 31%% WA
Entrusted funds received

= WND MIA N/A N/A NIA MNSA N/A 6.00%,
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J4A - 3B Han Thuven, Pham Dink Ho Ward {Issned under Uircnlar No,
Hai Ba Trung strict, Hanoi, Vietnam SN LTT-NENN dated 31 December 2004
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the af the State Bank of Vietnam)

yeur ended 31 December 2005 (contimued)

Foreign exchange rate risk and price risk

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk of adverse fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates when the
Group is exposed 1o foreign currency position.

Price risk is the risk of adverse Nuctuations in the value of the financial instruments, investments and
assets of the Group.

The Group's primary transaction currency is VWD, The Group's loans and sdvances to customens are
primarily denominated in VIND and LISD,

The Group has introduced a limit system (o manage each currency position. Currency positions are
monitored on a daily basis 1o ensure positions are maintained within the established limits. At the
same time, the Group has also implemented the risk management through price forecasting models and
statistics in order to avoid losses.

The followings are the major exchange rates applied by the Group at the reponting date:

Exchange rafes as at
3111272015 31122014

LISEVYIND 21,890 21,2464
XAUNND 3. 780,500 3.513,000
EURNND 23.216 26,193
ALDYWND 16,346 18,141

Q4



YVietnam Asia Commercinl Joint Stock Bank
344 - 3B Han Thuyen, Pham ok Ho Ward
Hai Ba Trung DHsirict, Hanoi, Yietnam

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2005 (continaed )

As at 3 December X005

Assels

Cash on hand, gold and gemstones
Balances with the SBY

Deposits with and lsans 1o other credit instinmions
Held-for-irading securities = gross

Loans and advances to customers - gross
Purchased debis

Investmient securities - gross

Capital contribution, long-term investments
Fixed pssets

Oihser asse1s

Tastal asseds (1)

Liabilities and owners” squity

Deposats and borrowings from other credil institutions
Deposits rom cusiomers

Entrusted fimds received

Valuable papers Bsaued

Other liabilities

Equity

Total liabilities (2)
FX position on balance sheet [(3) = (17 —{23]
FX position off-halance sheet (4)

FX position on and off-halance sheet |5] = (3)+ (4)]

Form BOSTCTD-HMN

figned pncler Clecnlor Mo
AR LTT-NHNN dated 31 Docember 204
af bk Sreate Bavk of Fietnam)

VD LSl ELUR Ceald Dhirs Tatal

VD YN VI VM WD VD
[ &2,456, 500, 7 34,551,.726,730 | B44 855 440 TR, 706 6GED G50 2000 466,975 334,550.343,535
431, 580,082,718 4,974,607, 399 - - - S 5606117
d,216,008,491, |48 358422000 388 2804, 100 450 2.367,530,225 4. 5T602.212,211
107,527, 745,273 - . - - 1 527,745 273
19,760,604, i, 8459 437 537,356,174 - 79560 873,386 20,267,711, %06 409
- 38,991, 877.497 - - JRO0Q BYT 497
11,351,980, 544,889 . - = 1L351.986,544 889
315.653.224.400 - - 315,653,224 400
2T8.541,673,262 - 278,541,673 262
4 623 877,782,701 - = 4,623,877, 782,701
41,268,242 811,940 DI ATT 0S8, IRK 464K 959 50 IRE.IT6 563,076 EIST.007. 200 42 405003990294
E2 383,04 40 989 dR1.TI% 356337 - = - 12.865.360,797 326
23462 ATRTHR 421 QTT 253 147 418 e 703, 9200 - 325070 24430 T 70 488
26, | 34, 500,000 - - = - 26,134, 500,040
8,477,026,500 - - 8,477,026,500
618, 848,427 533 + 618 H4B427.523
3,015 558,032,258 - - 1,919, 558,032,238
A0 A19, 138,195,600 1 4589715087588 e, TOE 20 - LI50.71%  AL.8TRATEASL095
B9, 1,616,249 (520,494, 845,567 4,554, 255970 IBR.2TH.563,070 S354. 746471 SHLAZE R6R 569
= AT0,635,000 (W) - - - 4T A35 000,000
A9 1 G163 4% (49,859 845.567) 4,584, 255,970 IBB. 276,563,076 5354746471 P70, 236,199
93
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Form BOSTCTD-HN
flesned wraler Circular Koo

AN LTT-NANN dated 3T December M4
af the Stare Bank of Vienam)

Vicmam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank

HA - MB Han Thoyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward

Hal Ba Truang District, Hanoi, ¥ictinam

Motes to the consolidoted Anancial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2008 {continued )

As gt 31 Decemibser 2004 WD s EUR Crnlif Oithers Taotal

YD L 1] VD VNI VNI YD
Assely
Cash on hand, goldand gemstones | B2 E8E,7 1,800 22.580,312.558 1. 363,637,755 48082 ART 440 2,399 817,855 AT 314,964 384
Balances with the SBY 644,773,522 548 54.408,508,742 . = . B9, 243 031,290
Deposits with and kang io other credit institutions P26 TTR 544478 11850, 166614 12,163,522 196 - L1 ARS, 1RG093 2069 023.4]3 281
Held-for-trading securities - gross 22450370 ERS . - - 22,450,370,885
Loans and advances to customers - gross [4. 783,670 457,256 539420 230,726 498 870.874.747 - 15,820,970, 362 724
Investment securities = gross AT 125,831,965 - = - = L1LETT 125,831,965
Capital contribution, long-tenm investments S1B.927.302 800 - - - - S18,927 302 8OO
Fixed asscts 228,609 564,976 - - - . 228,604 564 976
Oither assets 4552 500,79, 194 - - - - BER2 510,790 196
Total assets (1) 34437, 736,095904 TS, 6H,218,620 13,532,159,851 46 953 362, 187 13.584.997 048 35847074, 834,510

Lialsklities and owners” coaity

Borrowings from the SBY 10430 812 290 . [t 436812290
Deposits @nd borrowings from other credit institutions  11,338,920.995.030  297.579.256,4948 - - - 10,636,501 251 528
Deposits from customers 19, 18] 406,403 T00 584 635 518,553 A612 601 657 1.620.778 19,779, 746,323,690
Entrusted funds recelved 12,431 250004 - - - - P2 43,250 000
Cither linbilites 416,430 564 687 - 4|43 564 687
Equity 3635957219365 - - - 3635957219565
Total linhilithes (2] 24,704 688334072 HH2 214775053 R L - 1L620L,TTR 35 200,512 421 560
FX position on balance sheet [(3) = (1) - (2)] (266,947,238,168) (147.146,556,433) 0019468, 194 G, 953, 362, 187 13683377170 256,6062,412.950
FX position off-balance sheet (4) - - % & . -
FX position on amd off-balance sheet (5= (3) + (4)] (206,947 238 168 (147,146,556, 455) D019, 4068, 194 5, 953 362, 187 15883 377,170 256,662 412,950
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Victnam Asia Commercinl Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
J4A - B Han Thoyen, Pham Dink Ho Ward {Tesned wnder Circadar Mo,
Hai Ba Trung Disirict, Hamoi, Vietnam LTI LTT-NHNN dated 31 Dacomber 2014
Motes to the consolidated lnancinl siatements Tor of the Seate Bank of Vietraoy

the year ended 31 December 2003 (continued)

Below is an analysis of the possible impact on the net profit of the Group, after taking into account the
current level of exchange rates and the historical volatility as well as markel expectations as at 31
December 2015 and 2014,

Effect to nct
profit after tax
YND

Asat 31 December 2005
USD (3% strengthening) (1,160,402, 386)
KAL (8% weakening) 11.748.457.538
As at 31 December 2014
USD (2% strengthening) (2,205 480 280)
KA T weakening) 35,706,075,.657
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HN
24A - B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward {Tsawed werder Circular No,
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanol, Vietnam AT LTT-NHNN dated 3T December 20014
Notes to the consolidated Minancial statements for af the Srare Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2005 {continued)

Fair values versus carrving amounts
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liahility settled, between
knowledgeable. willing partics in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

The fair values of financial instruments, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, are as follows:

Jixms M4
Carrying amoani Fair value Carrying amouni Fair value
YMD WVND YN VND

Categorised as financial assets ai Tair value ihrough profit or loss:
= Held-for-trading securitiss

= | rted 103, T31,636,547 122,037,935 000 17.552 610 147 18,409 07 ] 50K

= D= listed S04 000, Oy 1*] S04, 00,0 i)
Categorksed as held-to-malurity investments:
= Held-to-maturity securities 2 446 250 T4R 14K 1*] 13RS 311675384 (*}
Categorised as loans and recefvables:
= BHalances with the SRV S Se0600 | 1T 306 S60 600 17 G99 243001 2906 a00 242 051 290
= Deposits with and beans o other

credit institutions 4.5 602 x12.211 {*) 2069023413281 el
®  Loans and advances to custiomers 2000065 701,178,538 (%) 15.633,183.931,713 e
= Purchased debis 38991 BTTA97 (*) - -
= Accrued interest and fees

receivahle 30615 BT2 361 055 (%) 2,228, 764064, 842 {*
" Receivahles 1,641 366, 588 613 (%) 1,761,729.231,144 %)

Limﬂﬂmeﬂ us available-for-sakbe asseis:
Avaitable-lor-sale equity securitics

- Listed 1026252000 30,368.232.000 * *)

- Unlisted 58,922 400,000 [} F8.522 400,004 [l
= Aviilable-for-sale debt securities  8,520,914,155,139 (%) 10,065 408,726,385
= Capital contribution, long-term

imvestmenis 315653, 224.400 (*y 518927302 &0 (*)
Categorised as liabilitkes at amortised cost:
= Borrowings from the SBY . - (109 436,812.2907 (10943681 2,290
®  [Deposids and bormowings from

other credit institutions (12,865 360,707 326) {*3(11.636,501.251,528) i*}
= Deposits from customers (24,439, 790 870 488) (019,779, 746 3235 G941 (")
= Entrusted funds received 126,134, 500 0600 i (D31 250,000 {*)
= Waluable papers issued (&,477.02%6_500) *} . *)
= Aporued inberest and fees payable (508 858,150,902 (*5 (366,87 TR 107) {*)
= Other liabilises 45,828,153 817} (%5 143,900.915,6%90) {*

The Group has not determined fair values of these financial instraments for disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements because inlormation about their market prices is not available and there is currenily
no guidence on detenmination of fair value using valuation technigues under Vietnamese Accounting
Standards or the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of
Wietnam and the relevant statutory requirements spplicable to fnancial reporting.  The fair values of
these financial instruments may dilfer from their carrying amounts,

o8
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Vietnam Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOSTCTD-HM
J4A - 34B Han Thuyen, Pham Dinh Ho Ward (sswed wnder Circulor N
Hii Ea Trung Disirict, Hapoi, Vietnam JWIHIATT-NHNN dinded 3T December 2004 of the
Moles to the consolidated financial statements for Srate Bank of Fietnam)

the vear ended 31 December 2005 {continued)

Lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31/12:2015 3111272014
VND VND
Within | year 27,756,229, 196 33,233.135,194
Within 2 10 5 years TT.990.839.821 40.61 8,038,585
Ower 5 vears 4, 837.6590,000 2,439,040,800

110,584, 759,017 76,290.214,579

Corresponding figures

As described m Note 3(b), the Group has adopted Circular 49 for the vear ended 31 December 2013,
Due to the adoption of Circular 49, the presentation of certain financial statement captions has been
changed. Certain corresponding figures for the vear ended 31 December 2014 have been reclassified 1o
conform with curment vear’s presentation. A comparison of the amounts previously reported and as
reclassified was as follows:

Consolidated statement of incomie

14 4
[as (@5 previoosly
reclassificd) reported)
VNI YN
Met loss from sales of investment securities (36,049390,522) (96,531,420,718)
Othier income 127 340 154,229 127.909 545,229
Allowance expenses [or credit losses (12073395, 7658 (12.160.665,573)

23 Apnl 2016

_I_,_l-'-

‘ﬂéﬂmng

Chief Accowtant

ag




